
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday 13 February 2023. 

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Tuesday, 21 February 2023 at 10.30 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Helen Crawford, Chairman of the Council (Chairman) 
Councillor Ben Green (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor John Dawson, Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor Philip Knowles, 
Councillor Julia Reid, Councillor Susan Sandall, Councillor Jane Wood and Vacancy 
(Alliance SK) 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date,  
via the SKDC Public-I Channel 

 

 

1.   Public Speaking 
 

The Council welcomes engagement from members of the public. To speak at this 
meeting please register no later than 24 hours prior to the date of the meeting via 
democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

 

2.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.   Disclosure of interests 
 

 

4.   Action notes of the meeting held on 22 November 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 22) 

5.   Updates from previous meeting 
 

To consider updates on actions agreed at the meeting held on 22 
November 2022. 
 

(Page 23) 

6.   Announcements or updates from the Leader of the Council, Cabinet 
Members or the Head of Paid Service 
 

 

7.   ICT Cyber-Security Action Plan -Verbal Update 
 

To provide the Committee with a verbal update of the updated ICT Cyber-Security 
Action Plan. 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://southkesteven.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

8.   Budget Monitoring Report - Quarter 3 (October - December 2022) 
 

To inform Finance, Economic Development & Corporate Services 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee of the Council’s forecast 2022/23 financial 

position as at the end of December 2022. The report covers the following 

areas:                                       
 

• General Fund Revenue Budget 

• Housing Revenue Account Budget 

• Capital Programmes – General Fund and Housing Revenue 
Account 

 

(Pages 25 - 50) 

9.   Disabled Facilities Grant Report 2022/2023 
 

This report provides a summary of the activity relating to Disabled Facilities 
Grants (DFGs) during quarters 1 to 3 of 2022/23. 
 

(Pages 51 - 55) 

10.   Grantham Future High Streets Fund - February 2023 Update 
 

To update the Committee on progress in delivering Grantham’s 
transformational scheme being funded via central Government’s Future 
High Streets Fund.   
 

(Pages 57 - 78) 

11.   Housing Stock Condition Update 
 

To provide Committee with an update on how the data from the recent 
stock condition surveys is informing our future budget, grant application 
and asset management of Housing Revenue Account assets. 
 

(Pages 79 - 88) 

12.   S106 Agreement Monitoring Update Report 
 

To provide an overview of the Section 106 (planning obligation) process, 
an update on recruitment and the recent Infrastructure Funding Statement. 
 

(Pages 89 - 121) 

13.  Work Programme 2022 – 2023 
 

To consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2022 – 
2023. 
 

 (Pages 123 - 124) 

14.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstance decides is urgent 
 
 

 



 
 

Meeting of the 
Finance, Economic Development 
and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Tuesday, 22 November 2022, 10.30 am 
 
Council Chamber – South Kesteven House, 
St Peter’s Hill, Grantham, NG31 6PZ 

 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Helen Crawford (Chairman) 
Councillor Ben Green (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Susan Sandall 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
Councillor Paul Wood 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
 

 

Other Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Virginia Moran 
 

Cabinet Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Robert Reid (Cabinet Member for Housing and Property) 
Councillor Adam Stokes (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
 
 

Officers in attendance 
 
Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 
Richard Wyles (Chief Finance Officer) 
Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and Culture) 
Alison Hall-Wright (Assistant Director of Finance) 
Jon Hinde (Head of Economic Development) 
Claire Moses (Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service) 
Debbie Roberts (Head of Corporate Projects, Policy and Performance) 
Sarah Downs (Democratic Officer) 

 

 

 
37. Public Speaking 

 
There were no comments from members of the public. 

 

3

Agenda Item 4



 
 

38. Apologies for absence 
 

Apologies were received from Councillor John Dawson. 
 
It was confirmed that Councillor Ashley Baxter was representing Alliance SK on the 
Committee today. 

 
39. Disclosure of interests 

 
There were none. 

 
40. Minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2022 

 
A Member informed the Committee that 3 or 4 points on page 9 of the minutes were 
recorded too briefly without any context of what was discussed and requested that 
this was considered and addressed. 
 
The Chairman agreed that the minutes would be rechecked. 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2022 were proposed, seconded 
and AGREED as a correct record. 

 
41. Updates from previous meeting 

 
The Committee noted the actions from the meeting held on 27 September 2022. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that minute items 27 and 30 were complete and item 29 
was to be received as a verbal update within the meeting today. 
 
A Member asked about the email circulated to Committee Members in reference to 
the update on St Martin’s Park Demolition Works as they did not think they had 
received the communication, which included the attachment of a survey report.  The 
Member requested that the date that any such emails were sent be included in 
future be recorded on the action sheet in future.  Another Member added that there 
were to be 2 reports circulated to committee members describing that one survey 
was before the works began where a professional surveyor informed that the 1904 
building could be retained. A further survey carried out at a later date confirmed that 
the building could no longer be saved.  
 
The Head of Projects, Policy and Performance confirmed that the email, with both 
survey reports, would be re-sent immediately and the Officer was happy to answer 
any questions. 
 
The Assistant Director of Finance informed the Committee that they would be 
providing the update on minute item 29, the Cyber Security Action Plan.   The 
Council had received £150,000 from the Government to implement a cyber-security 
action plan.  Currently 32 actions were identified, 19 have been completed, 9 were 

4



 
 

in progress and 4 had not yet been started.  The Committee were informed that all 
actions would be implemented by February 2023. 
 
ACTION 1: 
 
A Member requested that the Cyber Security action plan update be added to the 
Work Programme for next February and the Chairman agreed.  

  
 

42. Announcements or updates from the Leader of the Council, Cabinet Members 
or the Head of Paid Service 

 
There were none. 
 
A Member raised a point of order (under part 4) that the ‘announcements’ item was 
not within the Constitution.  The Member added that as part of the process on 
scrutiny, an agenda item had been added to the scrutiny committees: 
 
‘Announcements or updates from the Leader of the Council, Cabinet Members or 
the Head of Paid Service’ 
 
The Member continued that since the item was introduced in July there had been 
no updates or announcements at any other meeting. 
 
The Chairman added that all items on every agenda were there to be scrutinised. 

 
43. Localised Council Tax Support Scheme 2023/24 

 
The Deputy Leader of the Council presented the report and confirmed that each 
year the Council was required to review their Council Tax Support Scheme to 
determine its sustainability and consider any potential changes for the following 
financial year. 
 
The Council Tax Benefit system was abolished on 31 March 2013 and replaced by 
the Local Council Tax Support Scheme (CTS).  This scheme was to be determined 
locally by the Billing Authority having had due consultation with precepting 
authorities, key stakeholders, and residents.  There were currently 7,414 residents 
claiming Council Tax Support in the South Kesteven District.  Of these, 3,141 were 
pensioners and 2,731 were vulnerable working age, who were protected under the 
legislation and received Council Tax support as prescribed by the Government 
(broadly similar to the level of Council Tax Benefit).  It was the 1,542 remaining 
working age claimants where a local scheme could be determined which was able 
to change the level of support provided.  The scheme currently provided 80% 
entitlement for working age claimants. 
 
A report was presented to this Committee on 19 July 2022, giving more details with 
regards to the impact of the move of legacy benefits to Universal Credit, and the 
impacts of cost of living.  Despite the scheme being a ‘local’ CTS scheme due to 

5



 
 

the nature of protection provided to pensioners and vulnerable working age 
customers, there was always to be an element of cost that the Council had to incur 
and for which it had no influence over. 

 
Based on caseload as at 27 October 2022, the current cost of the 2022/23 scheme 
was £7,056,973 with South Kesteven’s share of this being £635,127 (9%).  Due to 
this protection from changes to pensioners and vulnerable working age customers, 
any ‘savings’ to be made to the proposed scheme could only be applied to the 
1,542 customers, or 20.79% of the caseload.  This meant out of the current Council 
spend of £635,127 – only £132,043 (20.79%) could be influenced by a change to 
the current scheme.  The reality was that out of any potential options that may 
reduce spend against budget is to decrease the ‘maximum entitlement’ – e.g. to 
reduce the maximum CTS customers can receive from the current position of 80%. 
 
In addition, the scheme enabled the Council to support care leavers and special 
constables through a discretionary discount scheme.  The scheme was first 
approved for 2022/23. Currently, we had 3 Special Constables in receipt of the 
discount.  If the scheme was approved to continue in 2023/24, the award of the 
discount was to be referenced to service during 2022/23.  As a result, the eligibility 
for the discount was to be considered and an award made no later than the 31 May 
of the following financial year and would be applied to the Council tax account in 
2023/24.  If the scheme continued, the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) was 
to write to all Special Constables who lived within the district of South Kesteven, by 
30 April 2023, confirming they have met the hours worked criteria, and would 
provide a link to the Councils website.  The Special Constable would be required to 
complete the application form and upload the letter from the PCC. An award was to 
be made no later than 31 May 2023. 
 
The Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service gave an update following 
the Autumn Statement. 
 
The Officer informed the Committee that the actual cost of the scheme would not be 
known until the end of the financial year and was to be dependent on caseload as 
well as levels of Council Tax set by the District Council and Police Authorities.  The 
complexities of the budget changes meant there was a 10.1% increase in benefits 
for various people in receipt of new state pension, basic state pension, pension 
credit and the enhanced daily rate component for personal independent payments, 
along with Universal Credit having increased.  The Officer confirmed that the 
Council needed to ensure the increases were accurate as well as understanding 
the impact this could have on the scheme.  An increase in benefits could have 
resulted in a decrease in the Council Tax support awarded and an impact on the 
scheme percentage of 80%.  The household support fund was also there to support 
residents.     
 
During discussion, members raised the following points: 

 

6



 
 

• Did the survey response rate of 80% supporting the scheme refer to 80% of 
27 respondents?  This was a low response to be considered supportive, 
however, it was acknowledged that people couldn’t be forced to respond. 

 

• Did the discount include students too?  
 

• The difficult timing of the autumn statement was acknowledged but it would 
have been useful to have received an update on its impact before today’s 
meeting. 

 

• How much did it cost the Council to give discount to those special constables 
who currently received it and what was the maximum potential cost as a 
whole? 

 
The Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service confirmed that students 
weren’t required to pay Council Tax so had no requirement for the scheme.  The 
Committee were informed that various ways of consultation were looked at.  For the 
2022/23 survey, 8236 surveys were sent out and a response of 3.74% was 
received.  This year, having been mindful of the cost, social media was updated 
and key stakeholders such as Citizens Advice were able to support.  The Officer 
confirmed that the cost for the 3 special constables who currently received the 
discount was circa £800 each.  Last year’s cost would have been circa £9,500 had 
everyone eligible applied. 
 
A Member queried the cost and that Lincolnshire County Council along with the 
Police Authority were amongst the largest contributors. 
 
The Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service continued that the cost of 
the Council Tax Scheme was 100% borne by the District Council as it was a local 
scheme that had been agreed to adopt.  The Committee were informed by the Chief 
Finance Officer that Cabinet were originally mindful not to incorporate into the 
scheme as other district councils within the county had changed their stance on the 
scheme and the original intention was to take the scheme forward together so as to 
prevent a ‘postcode lottery’.  However only 2 district councils proceeded with the 
scheme. 
 
The Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service confirmed that a report 
heard at Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny on 23 November 2021 paragraph 7.5 stated: 
 
‘Should the Council wish to approve the proposal of the Council Tax Discount for 
the Special Constables, this will be a direct cost to the General Fund of circa £9,564 
for the awards relating to 2021/22.’ 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED that the Committee:  

 

7



 
 

a) recommended to Cabinet the proposed Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme for 2023/24 after considering the feedback from the recent 
consultation.  
 
 

44. Progress Update on the new South Kesteven Economic Development 
Strategy 2023 - 2028 

 
The Leader of the Council presented a report on the draft Economic Development 
Strategy. 
 
Growth and our Economy is one of the five strategic priorities contained within the 
current Corporate Plan (2020-2023). The Council had several key roles to play in 
delivering economic growth and allowing the private sector to grow and create new 
jobs.  The consultation process was to start today and an action plan to be 
developed over coming months, linked to key performance indicators. 
 
The first draft of the emerging Economic Development Strategy was presented to 
Members, due to be adopted from 1 April 2023 to ensure the focus and priorities 
were sufficiently captured and where the Council could have the greatest impact 
through leadership, influence and delivery against its own priorities.  During 27 June 
2022 meeting of this Committee, Members were made aware that a scoping 
exercise was underway to bring forward a new Economic Development Strategy for 
the District to cover the period 2023 – 2028.   
 
Several reasons for why a new Strategy was required were given:  
 

• The previous strategy having expired in 2021  
 

• The closure of InvestSK Ltd and the economic development function being 
insourced from April 2022  

 

• The economic landscape post European Union Transition and the COVID-19 
pandemic 

 

• The emerging Government Levelling Up agenda and the replacement of 
European Structural Funds with the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF). 

 
A key element of the report was the updated economic intelligence which provided 
a number of local data sets gathered from the Office of National Statistics (ONS/ 
Nomis), The Centre for Entrepreneurs (CfE) and Scarborough Tourism Economic 
Activity Monitor (STEAM).  This was the most up to date economic data available 
and provided a great deal of information about the District across eight key 
indicators:  

 

• Population of South Kesteven: 143,200 (ONS 2021 census)  
 

• Households in South Kesteven: 55,894 (ONS 2021 census)  

8



 
 

 

• Businesses in South Kesteven: 6,265 (ONS 2022)  
 

• Net gain business growth between 2017 and 2022: 345 (ONS 2022)  
 

• New Businesses Start Ups in 2020: 926 (Centre for Entrepreneurs)  
 

• South Kesteven Businesses Employ: 54,000 (ONS 2021)  
 

• Average resident earnings: £583 per week (Nomis 2021)  
 

• Visitors to South Kesteven in 2021: 2.72m (STEAM 2021)  
 

Further analysis of the data provided information regarding a breakdown of the 
business sectors in the District, detailing the number of businesses and number of 
people employed within each sector.  This information had been vital in allowing the 
identification of the key sectors within the South Kesteven economy, namely:  

 

• Manufacturing (and Engineering)  
 

• Construction • Retail and Wholesale 
 

• Accommodation and Food Services  
 

• Professional, scientific and technical  
 

• Business administration and support services 
 

The strategy identified links to other plans and partner organisations the Council 
were to collaborate on, to meet the aims of the strategy. These were identified 
within the strategy and included: Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership, 
Department for Work and Pensions, Federation of Small Businesses (FSB), 
Lincolnshire Chamber of Commerce and several local business support groups and 
educational establishments. 
 
Over £16 million of external funding was secured to deliver projects, support 
community groups, fund COVID-19 response activity and enhance educational 
facilities. It also identified £53 million of COVID business support, administered by 
Officers and recognised as an exemplar at the recent FSB Local Government 
Awards. 
 
Members raised the following points during discussion: 

 

• It was important to have a strategy that would work and receive positive 
changes.  What obstacles may be faced? 

 

9



 
 

• The Council had to be realistic.  The district economy was 100 times larger 
than what the Council spent annually. 

 

• There was always room for improvement.  A wish to see more highly-paid 
manufacturing jobs was expressed as well as export figures. 

 

• Defined SMART and measurable objectives could have been incorporated 
within the strategy and more detail given. 

 

• There is a national labour shortage.  How could the Council rectify this? 
 

• There were so many positive factors to the area of South Kesteven – good 
education and fantastic history.  Connectivity was weaker in the south of the 
district and people should have been encouraged to spend money in the area 
and not in neighbouring counties such a Leicestershire or Cambridgeshire. 

 

• The St Martins Park development could be included in the final version of the 
strategy. 

 

• There were no factors that made the strategy specific to the area of South 
Kesteven. 

 

• ‘Ample green space and community facilities’ were not consistent across the 
whole district, particularly in The Deepings. 

 

• It was great to celebrate achievements but there needed to be 
acknowledgement that hard times were continuing such as the cost-of-living 
crisis. 

 

• It was acknowledged that there were many commuters who did not spend 
their days within the area although the recent hybrid ways of working were 
bringing change to residents working habits. 
 

The Economic Development Manager informed Members that potential obstacles 
included a shortage of employment land in the right place but that this was being 
reviewed in the Local Plan.  South Kesteven had a low unemployment rate which 
was a difficulty when talking to potential investors.  While being located next to the 
A1 was very beneficial, businesses in the area were generally risk-adverse, 
particularly following the pandemic.  Going forward, the Council would have the 
Shared Prosperity Fund which could be linked to similar schemes to those that the 
Council ran during the pandemic, to assist businesses with their growth and 
resilience. 
 
The Leader of the Council informed Members that the Council needed to provide 
the enabling factor for businesses to grow by working with partners such as 
Lincolnshire County Council and significant landowners.  There was a shortage of 
young people staying in the area as they moved away for education and did not 
return.  Providing affordable housing could support their potential return.  Prices 

10



 
 

were higher in the south of the district due to the connectivity to London and 
Peterborough for commuters but facilities needed to remain local to attract 
residents to stay within the district.   

 
The Director for Growth and Culture confirmed that a section on the implications 
would be included in the next draft version and brought back before the Committee. 

 
 

It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
That the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Service Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee:  
 
a) Considered and offered feedback on the first draft of the South Kesteven 

Economic Development Strategy (2023 – 2028).  
 
b) Agreed the Council should consult on the draft strategy with Council 

members and the local business community, prior to final approval for 
adoption by 1 April 2023. 
 

45. Finance Update Report: April to October 2022 
 

The Chief Finance Officer presented the third Finance Update Report of the year 
that monitored and forecasted the projected spend against the backdrop of the 
current economic conditions that were facing the Council.  The Financial Risk 
Register continued to be updated to reflect the current risk.   
 
The General Fund budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 was £18.247m. 
 
The deficit forecast was primarily due to the inflationary increases on electricity 
(£200k), fuel (£200k), projected workshop cost pressures due to outsourcing of 
specific repairs (£82k), material costs (£200k) required for the maintenance of the 
Councils fleet and removal of the salary vacancy factor forecasts (£446k) which 
was proving challenging to achieve due to the use of temporary staff where there 
were key vacancies. The vacancy factor was to continue to be monitored 
throughout the remainder of the financial year, with an additional £168k of in year 
vacancies being forecast as at the end of October.  A projected net increase from 
the commercial waste service and an increase in interest rates receivable on 
investments was to be used to partially offset the forecasted inflationary increases 
(£400k).  Members were reminded that the net cost of budget included an efficiency 
saving of £500k for the corporate restructure. This would be achieved in 2022/23. 
 
The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 for the 2022/23 General Fund Capital 
programme was £19.608m.  
 
The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 for the 2022/23 HRA Revenue Budget 
was £6.116m. The budgeted surplus was fully utilised to fund future investment in 
stock growth and property maintenance. 

11



 
 

 
There was a reduced surplus for the HRA of £4.305m compared to a budgeted 
surplus of £4.402m. The increased surplus, partly due to an increase in interest 
rates receivable on investments, was to be used to partially offset the forecasted 
inflationary increases (£600k). This was offset by increased repairs and 
maintenance costs (£170k) and removal of the salary vacancy factor forecasts 
(£136k) which would be monitored throughout the remainder of the financial year. 

 
The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 for the 2022/23 HRA Capital 
programme was £16.353m. 
 
Since the budgets were prepared last Autumn and approved by Council in March 
2022, there had been an unprecedented and completely unforeseen increase in 
inflation and energy costs. This context along with potential pressures on the salary 
budgets was causing concern that the budget framework for 2022/23 would come 
under pressure as the year progressed.   As part of the outturn report, an inflation 
reserve of £500k was created for the General Fund to absorb any potential cost 
pressures during the current financial year.  Whilst this would provide some short-
term funding support, there would be a funding pressure going into 2023/24 which 
would need to be considered as part of the budget setting process. 
 
Fuel usage was approximately 625,000 litres per annum and the budgeted price per 
litre was set at £1.10. The latest bulk purchase unit price paid was £148.75 and 
continued to be monitored on a weekly basis.  The General Fund budget for 
electricity for 2022/23 is £517k which included a budget increase of 17% compared 
to 2021/22.  The HRA budget for 2022/23 is £155k which was an increase of 36% 
when compared to 2021/22. 
 
The current cost of living pressures were resulting in an increased number of 
Council Tax Direct Debit cancellations causing delays to receipt of payments.  
There was also difficulty in measuring the Business Rates target due to variances in 
business rates over the last 3 years. 
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• The deficit has reduced substantially from £417,000 to £159,000.  What 
biggest factor contributed to that?  Was it a reflection of dipping into our 
reserves?  

 

• Should Business Rates be recorded as a higher risk than medium, given the 
economic uncertainty? 

 

• Could the Council be assured that next year’s Housing Programme could still 
be achieved despite budgetary pressures? 

 

• Why was the Council underspending on new build investment when there was 
an intention to build more housing? 
 

12



 
 

The Chief Finance Officer informed Members that there had been no use of the 
reserves to reduce the deficit.  Many factors contributed to the projected deficit 
forecast.  As the Council proceeded through the financial year, the forecast became 
more accurate.  Investment income continued to change as markets fluctuated 
throughout the year.  The salary vacancy factor was where a certain level of 
vacancies were assumed within the organisation and as the months progressed 
there were more underspends demonstrated through salary vacancies and staff 
turnover.  There was an inflationary reserve established at a level of £500,000 to 
respond to the budgetary pressures which the Council would hope not to use. 

 
The Officer stated that the collection of Business Rates remained a volatile area.  
The Government had recently carried out a revaluation of the Rating List which 
would impact on the Business Rates bills for 2023/24.  Transitional relief would be 
introduced to reduce the financial impact on any changes to the rates payable for 
businesses affected by rateable value changes.   The Housing Programme was 
vulnerable to delays caused by the current market and the availability of 
contractors.  Procurement and identification of contractors was proving to be 
difficult.  There were supply chain and market issues as all Councils were looking 
for contractors to carry out similar works.  The delays were certainly not due to a 
lack of momentum from the Council.  The Council had a duty of care to tenants and 
tax-payers to always secure best value. 
 
The Leader of the Council added that allowances had to be made for the large area 
of work undertaken around the Stock Condition Survey.  It was essential that the 
Council was able to identify where investment was required, what needed to be 
replaced and how it could support the residents. 
 
A Member raised a further question that the budget report to be presented to 
Council in March 2023 would seek approval to use reserves to achieve a balanced 
position.  
 
The Chief Finance Officer informed that the budget report had not been finalised for 
2023/2024.  The provisional settlement for 2023/24 was not to be announced until 
19 December 2022 and therefore it was not possible at the current time to confirm 
the 2023/24 financial outlook.    It was confirmed that a balanced position had to be 
presented in March 2023 and if the settlement received was to be low, reserves 
may be required in the short-term to achieve this.   
 
Prior to the meeting a Member submitted a written set of questions in relation to the 
Finance Update Report.  Information was requested on the matters below: 
 

• Transfers of Revenue Reserves 

• Clarification on the Local Priorities Reserve and Inflationary Reserve 

• Confirmation in reference to a renovation project at Stamford Arts Centre 
that had completed ahead of the expected time 

• Terms and Conditions of Empingham Road, Stamford S106 monies 
 

13



 
 

A verbal response to each of the questions was provided at the meeting by the 
Chief Finance Officer and a written response was provided to the Member after the 
meeting.  (These are attached under Appendix A). 
 
 
ACTION 2: 
 
That the Director of Growth and Culture respond to Question 6 of the written 
submission: 
 
‘In Appendix A, in the table headed Growth & Culture, a forecast variance is 
shown for the net budget. What are the forecast variances for income and the 
forecast variances for expenditure for each of the Arts venues?’  
 
Comments made by Members following the written submission of the questions 
were as follows: 
 

• What could be done to reduce energy and fuel costs, were there any 
suggestions? 

 

• Was the Deepings Leisure Centre funding sourced entirely from borrowing 
with nothing allocated from reserves? 

 

• At one stage was it not considered that the Deepings Leisure Centre was to 
be partly funded from the receipts from St Martin’s Park? 

 
The Chief Finance Officer confirmed that in reference to reducing energy and fuel 
costs, reserves may be required.  There were several suggestions and many 
choices for Members to make through a number of reports to different committees 
such as more cost-effective street-lighting which was due to be heard at the 
Environment Committee on 23 November 2022.  The Officer also confirmed that 
Deepings Leisure Centre was always to have been funded through borrowing due 
to the scale of the project and there was never a formal decision made to fund from 
the receipts from St Martin’s Park. 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
That the Finance Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee:  

 
a) Reviewed and noted the forecast 2022/23 outturn position for the 

General Fund and HRA Revenue and Capital budgets as at the end of 
October 2022 and identify any variances that require action or 
investigation.  
 

b) Recommended no specific actions or interventions that should be 
considered in order to reduce the General Fund forecast deficit.  
 

14



 
 

 
 

 
 

46. Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators 2022-23 Mid-Year Report 
 

The Leader of the Council presented the Corporate Plan Key Performance 
Indicators 2022-2023 Mid-Year Report. 
 
The South Kesteven Corporate Plan 2020-23 was approved by Council on 1 
October 2020.  It was agreed by Council that actions, key performance indicators 
(KPIs) and targets would be developed by the relevant overview and scrutiny 
committee, which would retain oversight of the performance management 
arrangements at a strategic level.  These actions and indicators were presented to 
this committee and agreed on 17 November 2020.  The Year End report for 
2021/22 was presented to the Committee on 19 July 2022 and outlined the 
performance against the Corporate Plan for the previous financial year.  This report 
provided an update on performance to the mid-year point of the 2022/23 financial 
year and incorporated the changes recommended by the last KPI review to outline 
areas of the council’s performance which were successful and to advise where 
challenges may lay. 
 
Appendix 1 outlined the overall performance against the 15 actions being presented 
in this report, as well as specific performance against the sub measures contained 
within those.  The summary was as follows:  
 
11 of the actions are rated Green. These are actions which were on or above target 
as planned. 
 
3 actions are rated as Amber.  These were those off target by less than 10% or 
where milestone achievement was delayed but with resolution in place to be 
achieved within a reasonable timeframe.  The Heritage Action Zone was rated 
Amber and Members were to note that the progress of the Grade II listed Westgate 
Hall was shortly going out to tender.  
 
0 actions are rated Red. These were those falling significantly below target or 
overdue with no specific resolution date planned.  
 
1 action is listed as unreportable as the action was currently under review and an 
update was to be presented as part of the year end reporting process.  
 
There have been no areas of significant under performance identified in this report.  
 
The Leader informed Members that A Grantham Engagement Officer had started 
their role this week and the Hello SK app was progressing well with over 170 
businesses engaged currently.  The delivery of a new Maintenance Depot was 
underway although works had currently paused whilst procurement work was 
continuing. 

15



 
 

 
Completed projects for noting included: 

 

• The Constitution Review 

• The People Strategy 

• The Governance Review 

• IT Strategy 

• Asset Management Strategy 
 

The Leader confirmed that the ‘Investing in high-quality Leisure’ KPI was rated 
green as it referred to existing Leisure Centres currently in operation. 
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• There was no mention within the KPIs of one of the corporate priorities – 
‘housing that meets the needs of all residents’.  Why was this? 

 

• A Member welcomed the full condition surveys carried out on Grantham, 
Bourne and Stamford Leisure Centres.  There being no operating Leisure 
Centre at the Deepings surely meant that leisure facilities were not catering for 
the whole of the district and therefore how can the action be rated green? 

 

• Some of the KPIs were not specific enough to be rated anything other than 
green.  The report did not address some of the urgent details or specify 
failings. 

 

• It was noted that the format of reports had changed and no longer showed 
who reviewed and approved each report on its front page.  It was considered 
that there was a value to knowing who knew what information and when they 
knew it.  A suggestion was made that this was an attempt by Officers to avoid 
the openness and transparency required.  

 
The Leader of the Council that all KPIs are reviewed under the relevant 
committees.  The Corporate Plan was agreed in 2020 which was before the 
Pandemic.  It was clarified that the report covered up to the end of September 2022 
and at that time no decision had been confirmed on the Deepings Leisure Centre 
refurbishment. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive informed Members that there was considered no value 
in having names on the front of the report for how had approved and signed off 
each report.  The Head of Corporate Projects, Policy and Performance added that 
the Directors that were responsible for each area were always on hand at 
committee meetings to respond to any questions.  It was noted that the report 
format had changed over two months prior to the meeting and no comments had 
been made previously.  The Officer confirmed that measures and targets were 
agreed at previous meetings. 
 

16



 
 

The Vice-Chairman requested that it was put on record that a request had been 
made for the Member responsible to withdraw a comment that suggested a 
deliberate attempt to avoid transparency by Officers in reference to signing off 
reports and that the Member refused to withdraw the comment. 

 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
 
That the Committee: 

 
a) Noted the contents of the 2022/23 Mid-Year performance report.  
 
b) Members to consider if any concerns highlighted by the report required 

additional investigation to be added to the work programme.  
  
 

47. Telephony System Calls Handling Performance 
 

At the meeting of this Committee on 27 September 2022, an action was requested 
for the Committee to receive recent data on the calls handled within the Customer 
Service telephony system.  This report, presented by the Head of Revenues, 
Benefits and Customer Service, provided current calls handling performance to 31 
October 2022 and forward plan actions relating to Customer Service and telephony 
solutions. 
 
The report provided analysis of call handling from January 2022 through to October 
2022 for high volume service areas (where calls go into an agent queue) – which 
were:  
 
• Allocations and Tenancy Services – lettings  
• Housing Improvements and Repairs  
• Customer Services – including: Benefits, Council Tax Billing, Housing Register, 

Switchboard  
• Revenues, Business Rates, Enforcement, Rents (internal queue only)  
• Elections  
• Street Scene, Green and Trade Waste Team (internal queue only) – this is a new 

queue for reporting since 3 October 2022.  
 
Statistics were produced and issued by the Customer Service Co-Ordinator on a 
weekly and monthly basis to the relevant service areas.  The information included 
number of calls offered, handled, abandoned, average speed of answer and FTE 
time for call handling.  In addition, since 30 May 2022, the Customer Service Co-
Ordinator had requested commentary from all service areas regarding any factors 
which could impact call handling. Currently, the service areas detailed were 
averaging call answering of 79%.  This had since increased to 84%. 
 
During Quarter 2, the Customer Service Team saw a reduction in staffing and took 
on the call handing for two additional service areas – Council Tax and Benefits (not 

17



 
 

including complex calls).  Since April 2022 over 54,000 Council Tax Energy Rebate 
payments had been made.  There had been significant email and telephone contact 
resulting in this funding.  October had seen the recruitment of 5.27 full time 
equivalents into the Customer Service Team to replace vacant posts within the 
team and to ensure adequate resources for the additional service area contacts.  
The new members of the team had received training during October and this had 
been very successful. The training was ongoing and will take time for them to learn 
all 16 service areas. 

 
Members raised the following points during discussion: 

 

• Had any examples of problems been received by Councillors as requested by 
the Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services? 

 

• What changes had been made to mitigate the 1 in 5 calls that did not get 
answered.  Was there information on the length of time a customer waited and 
how many calls were abandoned? 

 

• It was noted that there had been a marked improvement in recent call-
handling. 

 

• The number of complaints received by Councillors becoming reduced in 
numbers will be the most positive sign of improvement.  We should always 
aim to provide the best service we can. 

 
The Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Service confirmed that one 
example of a complaint had been received and it was dealt with and responded to 
at that time.  Changes to the staffing rota had meant that there were increased staff 
numbers at known busy periods such as a Monday morning.  Information was 
available on the numbers of calls abandoned and waiting times if requested. 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
That the Committee:  

 
a) Noted the report and action plan and were invited to ask questions 

relating to the report and supporting documents.  
  
 

48. Update on Changing Places Toilet Facilities Project 
 

The Cabinet Member for Housing and Property presented the report. 
 
In July 2021 the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
announced the opening for Expressions of Interest bids for a share of a £30M pot to 
provide Changing Places toilets in existing, publicly accessible buildings, having 
been announced some months previously and consultation with relevant groups 
across the district was carried out to determine the preferred locations of the people 

18



 
 

who would use a Changing Places facility and their carers.  Changing Places toilets 
were larger accessible toileting facilities for severely disabled people, with 
equipment such as hoists, curtains, adult-sized changing benches and space for 
carers.  In March 2022 the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
informed the Council that its bid had been successful and that it had been awarded 
the maximum £160,000.  

 
The funding is awarded to cover a two-year period for completion of the project.  
One location in Grantham was reviewed to allow for increased access and to meet 
the requirements and suggestions from feedback of local users.  The four sites are 
now: 

 

• South Street public toilets, Bourne (In partnership with Bourne Town Council)  
 

• Abbey Gardens public toilets, Grantham  
 

• Meres Leisure Centre, Grantham (in partnership with LeisureSK Ltd)  
 

• The Shack, Recreation Ground, Stamford (in partnership with Stamford Town 
Council)  

 
Feasibility works have been undertaken on each of the four sites by SKDC’s 
consultant building survey Banks Long & Co. which provided initial scheme designs 
and budgetary costings for each of the sites. 
 
From review of the four schemes, initial designs for the Meres Leisure Centre, 
Grantham and the South Street toilets, Bourne had been agreed and we were now 
looking to progress these two projects in 2022/23 financial year with contractors 
who were currently being engaged with via the Changing Places support teams 
approved contractor list.  From the review of the designs in relation to Abbey 
Gardens Toilets, Grantham and The Shack, Stamford, specific configuration issues 
had been identified and this would require further investigation in order for the sites 
to be brought forward in the 2023/24 financial year. 
 
Members raised the following points during discussion: 

 

• When was it anticipated that works would be complete? 
 

• Who will own and manage the facilities and pay for the maintenance? 
 

• Bourne Town Council was asked for further funding contributions which the 
Member felt was not appropriate. 

 

• A Member thanked the Officer who contacted them to explain the lack of 
suitable venue in the Deepings. 

 
The Chief Finance Officer confirmed that the Council were securing contractors but 
the sourcing of approved contractors for a national scheme was proving difficult. 

19



 
 

 
The Leader of the Council welcomed the scheme as positive and informed the 
Committee he had meetings with the Grantham Disabled Children’s Society and the 
national team at Changing Places.  It was great to provide the facilities that our 
residents deserved. 

 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Property confirmed there was a planned 
meeting to confirm criteria and procedure with the Bourne Town Clerk and Town 
Councillor. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the Committee:  

 
a) Noted the update regarding the Changing Places Toilets facilities 

project.  
  
 

49. Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
 

The Committee noted the contents of the Work Programme 2022 – 2023. 
 

50. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstance 
decides is urgent 

 
There was no other business. 

 
51. Close of Meeting 

 
The Chairman closed the meeting at 12:58. 

 
52. Appendix A -Written Submission and Responses 

 
 

20



Submission to the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee meeting on Tuesday 22 November  

Made by Councillor Richard Cleaver under paragraph 6.5 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 

Rules set out in part 4 of the Council’s Constitution. 

In relation to Agenda Item 7 on page 20, would the committee please consider recommending that 

the Special Constabulary Council Tax Discount Scheme be extended to include volunteer (i.e. unpaid) 

PCSOs in anticipation of Lincolnshire Police possibly changing its current policy and recruiting such 

staff in future. 

In relation to Agenda Item 9 – Finance Update Report 

1. The item forecasts a Net Budget deficit for 2022/23 of £258k, and invites the committee to 

“Recommend any specific actions or interventions that should be considered in order to 

reduce the General Fund forecast deficit”.  However, the recommendations set out in 

Agenda Item 6 of the papers for the full council meeting on 24th November seek council 

approval for increases in the 2022/23 budget far in excess of £258k. Please could you explain 

why there is such a difference between the recommendation to this meeting and the one 

being made to full council two days later? The recommendations within the FEDCO report 

do not include the proposed spend and recommended use of reserves within the Council 

report as these have not as yet been approved. 

2. Table 2 on page 54 shows an increase of £159k in transfers from reserves between the 

‘current budget’ and the latest ‘forecast spend’. What does this £159 relate to? 

Reserve movement £’000 

Building Control trading account (3) 

New Burdens Grant funding (Additional resource in Finance) 55 

In year use of IER grant funding 56 

Corporate restructure exit costs 94 

St Martin’s Park- reduction in Business rates costs (96) 

Grantham SEA- Cemetery works 12 

Stamford SEA- Outdoor Gym equipment ODD 7 

Waste reserve 27 

Member Training 7 

Total 159 

 

3. Table 2 shows a new total transfer from reserves of £2,468k but Appendix B on page 69 

shows a forecast transfer from revenue reserves of £9,055k for the year. Please could you 

explain the difference? Table 2 details the reserve funding for general fund revenue 

expenditure only whereas appendix B details the full forecast use of the reserves, including 

both revenue and capital spend. 

4. In section 4.2 table 6, it states that a £69k project for renovations at Stamford Arts Centre is 

no longer proceeding. What was that project? Stamford foyer alterations 

5. In section 4.2 table 6, it also states that the terms and conditions attached to the 

Empingham Road s106 grants are unlikely to be met before 31/3/2023. Why is this 

considered unlikely. What is preventing the conditions being met? The payment of this grant  

is dependent on the rugby club commencing construction of their new pavilion. Current 

projection is this is in the next financial year. 

19

Minute Item 52

21



6. In Appendix A, in the table headed Growth & Culture, a forecast variance is shown for the 

net budget. What are the forecast variances for income and the forecast variances for 

expenditure for each of the Arts venues?  

7. In Appendix B, what do the forecast movements in the Local Priorities Reserve relate to?  

Reserve Movement £’000 

New Homes Bonus Grant 924 

Local Plan (161) 

Revenue funding (776) 

St Martin’s Park (500) 

Capital Financing (2,029) 

Total (2,542) 

 

8. In Appendix B, why have we created a £500k inflation reserve as at 31/3/2022 from which 

we are forecasting that no monies move in or out for the next 4 years? As per 9.2 of the 

report, this reserve was created to absorb cost pressures during the current financial year 

which is the proposal at year end dependent on the outturn.  

9. In Appendix B, the Useable Capital Receipts Reserve shows an increase of £2,322K in 

2023/24 and £6,181k in 2024/25. What do these figures relate to? How much of these 

figures relates to the sale of St Martin’s Park, and do they include the total expected capital 

receipts from St Martin’s Park? 

Usable Capital Receipts Reserve Movement £’000 

2023/24  

Council Offices 1,000 

St Catherine’s Road 640 

St Martin’s Park 1,452 

Capital Financing (770) 

Sub Total 2,332 

2024/25  

St Martin’s Park (6,397) 

Capital Financing 2,196 

Total 6,181 

 

10. How will the figures shown in Appendix B be affected by any decision made at full council to 

cancel the planned rebuilding of The Deepings’ Leisure Centre? The proposed expenditure 

would have been funded through borrowing so would not affect the reserve figures 

11. I note that whereas capital projections have been published up to 2025/26, there are no 

revenue budget projections provided for the same time period. I believe that this makes it 

very difficult for members of the council to make a fully informed decision on Deepings 

Leisure Centre at the meeting on Thursday 24th November.  

12. Where does the liability to repay £1.3m to the Greater Lincolnshire LEP for monies unspent 

in relation to the Technology Innovation Centre project appear in Appendix B? This had not 

been formally agreed at the point of publication. 

2022



ACTION SHEET 
 

Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the meeting held on 22 November 2022.  

Min 
No 

Agenda Item Action Assigned to Comment/Status Deadline 

41 28. Updates from the previous 
meeting 

That the Draft ICT Strategy Action 
Plan for Cyber-Security be added to 
the Work Programme as a verbal 
update 
 

Democratic 
Services Officer 

Has been added to the Work 
Programme for February 2023 
meeting of the Committee 

February 
2023 
 
COMPLETE 

45 Finance Update Report – 
April to October 2022 

‘In Appendix A, in the table 
headed Growth & Culture, a 
forecast variance is shown for the 
net budget. What are the forecast 
variances for income and the 
forecast variances for expenditure 
for each of the Arts venues?’  

 

Director of Growth 
and Culture 
 

Members to receive a response by 
email upon completion. 

Email sent 
18.1.23 
 
COMPLETE 

 

23

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

       

Finance, Economic Development 
and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 

 

21 February 2023 

 

Report of  

Councillor Adam Stokes 

The Deputy Leader of the Council 

 

 

 

Finance Update Report: October–December 2022 
 

Report Author 

Alison Hall-Wright (Assistant Director of Finance) 

 alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Purpose of Report 

To inform Finance, Economic Development & Corporate Services Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee of the Council’s forecast 2022/23 financial position as at the end of December 

2022. The report covers the following areas:                                       
 

• General Fund Revenue Budget 

• Housing Revenue Account Budget 

• Capital Programmes – General Fund and Housing Revenue Account 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee: 

1. Reviews and notes the forecast 2022/23 outturn position for the General 
Fund and HRA Revenue and Capital budgets as at the end of December 
2022. 

 

 

 

25

Agenda Item 8

mailto:alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant 
corporate priorities?  

Growth and our economy 

Housing that meets the needs of all residents 

Healthy and strong communities 

Clean and sustainable environment 

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s declaration 

of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

Finance and Procurement  

1.1 The financial implications are included within the report. 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 

Legal and Governance 

1.2 As part of good governance, it is important members are kept updated in respect 

of the financial position of Council expenditure during the year. 

Completed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance 

Risk and Mitigation 

1.3 A risk register is at Appendix E and shows that all known current risks are 

recognised and associated mitigating actions are in place. 

Completed by: Tracey Elliott, Governance and Risk Officer 

2 Background to the Report 

2.1 During the current financial year, Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee is being provided with regular finance 

reports that monitor and forecast the budget against the current economic 

conditions that are facing the Council. 

3 Revenue Budget 2022/23 – General Fund  

3.1 The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 was £18.247m. Table 1 shows the 

summary of movements. 
 

26



Table 1 – General Fund Revenue Budget Amendments 
 

Date of Approval Revenue Budget amendment £’000 

  18,247 

April 2022 Regeneration Reserve 30 

April 2022 ICT Reserve 68 

May 2022 Invest to Save Reserve  500 

July 2022  2021/22 Budget Carry Forwards 1,632 

August 2022 Waste Reserve 81 

November 2022 SEA Reserve 20 

November 2022 Inflation Reserve 199 

November 2022 Inflation Reserve 200 

November 2022 Local Priorities Reserve 280 

November 2022 Local Priorities Reserve 880 

January 2023 SEA Reserve 12 

January 2023 Regeneration Reserve 49 

Total  22,198 
 

3.2 The budget adjustments approved by Council on 24 November 2022 together with 

forecast changes since the amended budget was approved is resulting in a 

reduction in the previously forecast overspend.   The reduction in the forecast 

spend, additional projected investment interest and Minimum Revenue Provision 

(MRP) reduction is resulting in a forecasted balanced position as at 31 December 

2022.  These changes may lead to a reduction in the use of reserves for 2022/23 

by £765k.   However, given the uncertainty surrounding the Council’s exposure to 

external cost changes, this position will remain under a monthly review. 

3.3 Members are reminded that the net cost of budget includes an efficiency saving of 

£500k for the corporate restructure. This will be achieved in 2022/23. 

 

Table 2 – General Fund Forecast Outturn Position 

Description 

2022/23  

Original 
Budget 

2022/23 

Current  

Budget 

2022/23 

Forecast  

     Spend 

Forecast 
Variance 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Corporate 8,641 9,843 9,714 (129) 

Finance 4,344 5,027 5,022 (5) 

27



Growth & Culture 6,726 6,967 7,077 110 

Housing & Property 1,323 3,148 2,956 (192) 

HRA Recharge (2,787) (2,787) (2,787) 0 

Net Cost of Service 18,247 22,198 21,982 (216) 

Investment Income (101) (101) (501) (400) 

Minimum Revenue 
Provision 

291 291 131 (160) 

Revenue Contribution to 
Capital 

55 55 55 0 

Drainage Rates 792 792 803 11 

Depreciation (4,722) (4,722) (4,722) 0 

Net Budget Requirement 14,562 18,513 17,748 (765) 

Total Funding  (14,564) (14,564) (14,564) 0 

Transfers to/(from) 
earmarked reserves 

2 (3,949) (3,184) 765 

Net Budget  

(Surplus)/ Deficit 
0 0 0 0 

 

3.4 Table 3 shows the significant forecast variances which impact across all 

directorates for the General Fund revenue for 2022/23 as at 31 December 2022. 

Table 3 – General Fund Revenue – Significant Variances 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Net Cost of Service 

A number if minor variances across service areas 

(216) 

Investment Income 

Base rate increases have resulted in an increase on the interest rates available 
for investments.  The Council is now able to secure interest rates above 3% 
compared with the budgeted rate of 0.5% 

(400) 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 

The Council is not required to make an MRP provision for the borrowing 
associated with the St Martins Park Stamford as the asset is currently under 
construction. 

(160) 

 

 

3.5 Appendix A provides further details of the outturn revenue position for each 

Directorate along with service specific variance comments other than those 

detailed in table 3. 

28



4 General Fund Capital Programme 2022/23 

The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 for the 2022/23 General Fund Capital 

programme is £19.608m. Table 4 shows the summary of movements: 

Table 4 – General Fund Capital Programme Budget Adjustments 

Date of 
Approval 

GF Budget amendment £’000 

  19,608 

March 2022 Changing Places Facilities – Grant award 160 

April 2022 Street Scene Vehicle Procurement – delivery of 
vehicles in March 22 (funding utilised from 22/23) 

(525) 

May 2022 Disabled Facilities Grant- additional award 115 

July 2022 2021/22 Budget Carry Forwards 990 

September 2022 Loan to LSK Ltd for gym equipment  137 

November 2022 St Martin’s Park - Regeneration Reserve 193 

Total  20,678 

 

4.1 Table 5 summarises the General Fund Capital forecast outturn position as at 31 

December 2022. 

Table 5 – General Fund Capital Forecast Outturn Position 

Capital Scheme 

2022/23 
Original 
Budget 

 

£’000 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget 

 

£’000 

2022/23 
Forecast 

spend 

 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

 

 

£’000 

Corporate 2,517 2,486 1,996 (490) 

Finance  0 27 27 0 

Growth & Culture 13,992 14,252 2,421 (11,831) 

Housing & Property 3,099 3,913 1,931 (1,982) 

Total Expenditure 19,608 20,678 6,375 (14,303) 

 

 

4.2 Table 6 shows the significant forecast variances for the General Fund capital 

schemes for 2022/23 as at 31 December 2022. 

Table 6 – General Fund Capital – Significant Variances 

 

29



Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Street Scene Vehicle Procurement 

There is an underspend as the purchase of one vehicle cannot be delivered 
until 2023/24, a budget carry forward has therefore been requested as part of 
the 2023/24 budget report. 

(127) 

CCTV Camera Replacement 

This project has been delayed as the current analogue line needs to be 
replaced by a digital line due to the reduced availability of analogue cameras.  
The line is expected to be replaced in the new financial year.  A budget carry 
forward of £353k has therefore been requested to enable this project to be 
completed in 2023/24. 

(353) 

Future High Street Fund 

Grant applicants have not progressed as quickly as anticipated which has 
caused a delay in the award of grants. Schemes are progressing but it is 
unlikely that any will be paid in quarter 4.  A budget carry forward of £444k has 
been requested as part of the 2023/24 budget report. 

(444) 

Deepings Leisure Centre Refurbishment 

Following a meeting of Full Council on 24 November 2022 it has been agreed 
not to proceed with the refurbishment of Deepings Leisure Centre. 

(10,562) 

Deepings All Weather Pitch 

Following a meeting of Full Council on 24 November 2022 it has been agreed 
not to proceed with the development of a 3G pitch in Deepings.   

(700) 

Shop Front Scheme 

It is anticipated that this year’s programme will be funded from the Heritage 
Action Zone budget.  A budget carry forward has been requested as part of the 
2023/24 budget report which will enable the Council to continue to provide 
contributions towards enhanced shop fronts. 

(125) 

Welham Street- Resurfacing, Lift & Car Park barriers 

 The lift replacement and drainage repairs will be completed during 2023/24 so 
a budget carry forward has been requested as part of the 2023/24 budget 
report. 

(275) 

Empingham Road S106 Grants 

Until terms and conditions of the S106 monies have been fully met, funds 
cannot be transferred. This is unlikely to occur in 2022/23 so a budget carry 
forward has been requested as part of the 2023/24 budget report. 

(303) 

Sustainable Warmth Grant 

The grant terms and conditions have impacted on the Council’s ability to 
utilise the grant as the Council is only able to spend up to 50% on EPC D 
rated properties. 

(374) 

Meres Leisure Centre Boiler 

Stock condition surveys have been completed at the leisure centre sites.  
Replacement boiler works will be completed as part of the required works that 
have been identified in these surveys.  A budget carry forward has been 

(65) 

30



requested to enable these works to be completed in 2023/24. 

Cycle Centre and Changing Room 

The Council is in the process of identifying a suitable site for the replacement 
cycle centre and changing room.  A budget carry forward has been requested 
as part of the 2023/24 budget report. 

(40) 

Guildhall Arts Centre – Renovations 

Scheme is now complete and is under budget. 

(35) 

Stamford Arts Centre Roof 

The procurement process has been completed for this project and the 
contract has been awarded.  The works will commence Spring 2023 and 
works expected to take 6-8 months, a budget carry forward has therefore 
been requested as part of the 2023/24 budget report.  

(400) 

Stamford Arts Centre – Renovations 

This project has now been completed and the underspend is a budget saving.  

(64) 

Decarbonisation Scheme 

The next Salix funding round will take place in late Summer 2023.  A budget 
carry forward has been requested as part of the 2023/24 budget report to 
ensure the Council has match funding available.   

(261) 

Changing Places – Public Conveniences  

Initial feasibility works have been completed at the Meres Leisure Centre & 
South Street Toilets sites. Designs have been reviewed and procurement is 
currently underway.  The two remaining locations are currently at feasibility 
stage. 

(96) 

  

 

5 General Fund Reserves 
5.1 Appendix B details the General Fund forecast reserve movements for 2022/23. 

The appendix shows the actual balances as at 31 March 2022 and their 

projected use for the current and future financial years subject to approval by 

Council on 1 March 2023.  

6 Revenue Budget 2022/23 – Housing Revenue Account 

6.1 The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 for the 2022/23 HRA Revenue Budget 

was £6.116m. The budgeted surplus is fully utilised to fund future investment in 

stock growth and property maintenance. Table 7 shows the summary of 

movements: 

Table 7 – HRA Revenue Budget Adjustments 

Date of Approval HRA Budget amendment £’000 

  (6,116) 

March 2021 Electrical Testing 150 

31



July 2022 2021/22 Budget carry forwards 200 

July 2022 Earlesfield Grantham Project 1,364 

November 2022 HRA Priorities Reserve 167 

December 2022 Pay Award 249 

Total  (3,986) 

6.2 Table 8 shows an increased surplus for the HRA of £4.298m compared to a 

budgeted surplus of £3.986m.   The surplus is due to an increase in interest rates 

receivable on investments which will be used to partially offset the forecasted 

inflationary increases (£600k) and additional budget following the Pay Award 

(£163k).  This is offset by increased repairs and maintenance costs (£260k) and 

removal of the salary vacancy factor forecasts (£136k) which will be monitored 

throughout the remainder of the financial year and additional costs of completing 

a second Tenant Satisfaction survey (£24k).   Further details of these variances 

are provided in table 9. 

Table 8 – HRA Revenue Forecast Outturn Position 

Description 

2022/23 
Original 
Budget 

£’000 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget 

£’000 

2022/23 
Forecast 

spend 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance  
£’000 

Income (26,512) (26,512) (26,296) 216 

Expenditure 18,261 20,391 20,463 72 

Net Cost of HRA Services (8,251) (6,121) (5,833) 288 

Interest Payable 2,335 2,335 2,335 0 

Investment Income (200) (200) (800) (600) 

Surplus for the year (6,116) (3,986) (4,298) (312) 

 

6.3 Table 9 shows the significant forecast variances for the HRA Revenue fund 

schemes for 2022/23 as at 31 December 2022. 

Table 9 – HRA Revenue – Significant Variances 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Repairs & Maintenance 

Compliance works have required an additional £150k of electrical testing, £94k 
of additional costs for compensation payments and management fees being 
made due to disrepair claims received by the Council.  

260 

Supervision & Management – General 

There are additional costs of completing a second Tenant Satisfaction survey 
£18k during 2022/23.  

24 

Pay Award  (163) 

32



There has been an increase in the number of vacancies within the Directorate 
which has reduced the need of the increased budget relating to the pay award 
despite the increase in the use of agency staff. This will reduce the reserve 
movement at Outturn. 

Salary vacancy factor 

A reduction in vacant posts across the Council, an increase in notice periods 
and increases in agency provision will have a direct impact on the 
achievement of the salary vacancy factor.  This will continue to be monitored 
during the year and the forecast amended accordingly. 

136 

Investment Income 

Base rate increases have resulted in an increase on the interest rates available 
for investments.  The Council is now able to secure interest rates over 3% 
compared with the budgeted rate of 0.5%.   

(600) 

 

6.4 Appendix C provides further details of the HRA revenue forecast outturn position. 

 

7 HRA Capital Programme 2022/23 

The budget set by Council on 3 March 2022 for the 2022/23 HRA Capital 

programme is £16.353m. Table 10 shows the summary of movements: 

 

Table 10 – HRA Capital Programme Budget Adjustments 

Date of Approval GF Budget amendment £’000 

  16,353 

July 2022 2021/22 Budget Carry Forwards 2,881 

Total  19,234 

 

7.1 Table 11 summarises the HRA Capital forecast outturn position as at 31 

December 2022.  

Table 11 – HRA Capital Forecast Outturn Position 

Capital Scheme 

2022/23 
Original 
Budget 

£’000 

2022/23 

Current 
Budget 

£’000 

2022/23 
Forecast 

spend 

£’000 

Forecast 
Variance 

£’000 

Energy Efficiency Initiatives 3,885  4,230 2,000  (2,230)  

ICT 1,170 1,220 728 (492) 

Repairs Vehicles 178 178 178 0 

New Build Programme 3,820 4,120 930 (3,190) 

Refurbishment and Improvement 7,300 9,486    4,739 (4,747) 

33



Total Expenditure 16,353     19,234 8,575 (10,659) 

 

7.2 Table 12 shows the significant forecast variances for the HRA capital schemes for 

2022/23 as at 31 December 2022.   

 

Table 12 – HRA Capital – Significant Variances 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Central Heating, Ventilation and Boilers 

Slippage on this year’s programme will lead to a reduced programme which 
will mean that inflationary increase can be absorbed in the existing budget.  
A budget carry forward of £207k has been requested in the 2023/24 budget 
report to fund the Earlesfield programme. 

(2,230) 

Housing System Enhancements 

The system is forecast to go live in April 2023. Further modules will be 
delivered over the next 4 years and the in year underspend will be used to 
fund these modules in future years so a budget carry forward is proposed 
as part of the 2023/24 budget report. 

(470) 

Communal Rooms 

Reduced programme and emphasis on works related to landlord health and 
safety. Strategic review of the communal rooms offer is planned so the 
immediate focus is on compliance work. It is proposed to carry forward 
budget of £80k into 2023/24 

(80) 

Replacement Doors & Windows Programme 

Difficulties with current supplier capacity has led to the need to identify an 
alternative supplier in order to recommence the programme.  A budget carry 
forward of £52k has been requested in the 2023/24 budget report to fund 
the Earlesfield programme. 

(1,157) 

Housing Growth 

Swinegate, Grantham and Elizabeth Road, Stamford expected to start on 
site March 2023. Two further projects at Uplands Drive, Grantham and Larch 
Close, Grantham are currently in the planning stage. This year’s programme 
will also include the acquisition of properties on the open market.  A budget 
carry forward of £1.5m has been requested in the 2023/24 budget report to 
ensure there is sufficient budget to fund the new build projects detailed 
above. 

(3,190) 

Kitchens & Bathrooms Programme 

There is an impact on the contractor delivering the programme due to other 
SK works being prioritised, coupled with contractor staff shortages causing 
capacity issues. This is causing a delay in the programme delivery.  A 
budget carry forward of £903k has been requested in the 2023/24 budget 
report to fund the Earlesfield programme. 

(1,675) 

34



Door Entry System 

Review of procurement arrangements to be undertaken therefore a smaller 
improvement scheme is planned for this year. 

(310) 

Exterior Refurbishment 

Significant inflation risk, materials and inflation uplift in contract.  Mitigations 
- Programme to be adjusted. Delay in programmes will affect the energy 
efficiency targets. 

(460) 

Re-wiring 

Due to delays in starting the Earlesfield programme which commenced in 
October, it is not likely that the initial programme will be completed in this 
financial year.  A budget carry forward of £303k has been requested in the 
2023/24 budget report to fund the Earlesfield programme. 

(495) 

Passenger Lifts, Supported Housing Scheme 

Pending contract award, inflation risk but budget provision likely to allow 
containment as tenders lower than anticipated.  Lack of in-house expertise 
in this specialist field has led the Council to engage consultancy to procure 
and manage works. 

(495) 

Fire Prevention 

The underspend of this budget is a result of the procurement process that 
was undertaken for the fire compartmentation surveys delaying the 
identification of resulting works, the underspend shall be spent in the first 
few months of the next financial year. 

(100) 

 

8 HRA Reserves 
8.1 Appendix D details the HRA forecast reserve movements for 2022/23. The 

appendix shows the actual balances as at 31 March 2022 and their projected use 

for the current and future financial years subject to approval by Council on 1 

March 2023.   

9. Collection Rates 

9.1 Table 13 details the current collection rates against target for 2022/23. 

 

 

 

 

 Table 13 – Collection Rates 

Target Information  Council Tax Business Rates Rents 

Annual collection rate Target 98.60% Target 98.32% Target 97.35% 

35



Target collection rate 

to end of January 

2023 

93.05% 87.05% 81.37% 

Actual collection rate 

to end of January 

2023 

92.22% 87.33% 81.41% 

9.2 Council Tax – during the national mourning period in September, there was a 

cessation of recovery activity where reminders or summonses were not issued. 

The current cost of living pressures are resulting in an increased number of DDR 

cancellations causing delays to receipt of payments. 

9.3 Business Rates – the target shown above is a comparison to the January 2022 

position. There is difficulty in measuring this target due to variances in business 

rates over the last 3 years.  

 

10.  Reasons for the Recommendations 

10.1 Committee Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the 

Authority, as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial 

resources are spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the 

Council’s priorities.  Monitoring enables the early identification of variations 

against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action. 

10.2 This report provides an overview of the forecast 2022/23 financial position for the 

Council and focuses on the position as at the end of December 2022. 

11.  Consultation 

11.1 Budget monitoring reports have been presented to the Finance, Economic 

Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 19 

July, 22 September and 22 November. The Committee requested that regular 

reports be presented at each Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) meeting 

to ensure members were kept fully updated on the changing situation. 

 

12.  Background Papers 

12.1 Determination of Budget 2022/23 and indicative budgets for 24/25 – General 

Fund, Housing Revenue Account and associated Capital Programmes Report. 

   http://moderngovsvr/documents/s32627/Council%20Budget%20Report.pdf 

12.2    Provisional Outturn Position 2021/22 report 

 http://moderngovsvr/documents/s35223/Draft%20Financial%20Outturn%202021

22.pdf 

12.3    Finance Update – April – August 

Finance Update Report April-August 2022 Report.pdf (southkesteven.gov.uk)  

36

http://moderngovsvr/documents/s32627/Council%20Budget%20Report.pdf
http://moderngovsvr/documents/s35223/Draft%20Financial%20Outturn%20202122.pdf
http://moderngovsvr/documents/s35223/Draft%20Financial%20Outturn%20202122.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35707/Finance%20Update%20Report%20April-August%202022%20Report.pdf


12.4    Finance Update April - October 

Finance Update Report.pdf (southkesteven.gov.uk) 

13.  Appendices 

13.1  Appendix A – 2022/23 General Fund Significant Variance Analysis 

13.2  Appendix B – 2022/23 General Fund Reserves  

13.3  Appendix C – 2022/23 HRA Revenue Summary - Forecast Outturn 

13.4  Appendix D – 2022/23 HRA Reserves 

13.5  Appendix E - Finance Risk Register 

37

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s36128/Finance%20Update%20Report.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

2022/23 General Fund Revenue Significant Variance Analysis 

 

Corporate 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget  

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget  

2022/23 
Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance  

 
 

Forecast 
Variance  

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Centralised & 
Business 

Support 486,890 (3,200) 483,690 460,780 (22,910) (4.7%) 

Communications 425,080 (4,300) 420,780 319,946 (100,834) (24.0%) 

Corporate 
Management 434,262 (1,700) 432,562 463,662 31,100 7.2% 

Human 
Resources 391,214 (6,950) 384,264 394,164 9,900 2.6% 

Legal & 
Democratic 1,683,738 (323,469) 1,360,269 1,421,029 60,760 4.5% 

Ops & Public 
Protection 

Management 97,063 0 97,063 117,563 20,500 21.1% 

Organisation & 
Transformation 1,147,266 (484,400) 662,866 648,089 (14,777) (2.2%) 

Public 
Protection 1,620,950 (385,000) 1,235,950 1,207,691 (28,259) (2.3%) 

Waste & Street 
Scene 6,912,375 (2,147,100) 4,765,275 4,681,175 (84,100) (1.8%) 

Total 13,198,838 (3,356,119) 9,842,719 9,714,099 (128,620) (1.3%) 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

 Communications 

Publication and distribution costs of the SK Today publications during 2022/23 have 
significantly increased.  This has been mitigated by staffing vacancies in the service 
area   

(101) 

 Legal & Democratic 

Land Charges - Additional search fee costs together with an increase in non-
chargeable personal searches and significant reduction in official searches of 34% 
based on 2021/22 has resulted in a forecast overspend of £65k. This has been 
partially mitigated by in year vacancies of £10k 

61 

Street Scene 

Commercial Waste - Additional sales value has been achieved as a result of in year 
price increases and continuing growth in the customer base 

(84) 

 

39



 

Finance 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget 

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget  

2022/23 
 Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance  

 
 

Forecast 
Variance  

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Finance 2,871,097 (135,550) 2,735,547 2,827,265 91,718 3.4% 

Finance 
Management 131,203 (16,350) 114,853 118,953 4,100 3.6% 

ICT Services 1,847,510 (40,550) 1,806,960 1,769,788 (37,172) (2.1%) 

Revenues, 
Benefits & 
Customer 
Services 20,386,486 (20,016,950) 369,536 306,386 (63,150) (17.1%) 

TOTAL 25,236,296 (20,209,400) 5,026,896 5,022,392 (4,504) (0.1%) 
 
 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Finance 

Interim accountancy and procurement support whilst roles were in permanent 
recruitment has resulted in additional costs which can be funded with in year under 
spends 

92 

ICT 

Establishment roles remaining vacant in year during a service review restructure has 
resulted in under spends 

(37) 

Revenues, Benefits & Customer Services 

Additional income has been received in respect courts costs 

(63) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40



Growth & Culture 

Service Area 

Current 
Expenditure 

Budget  

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget  

2022/23 
 Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance  

 
 

Forecast 
Variance  

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Arts & Culture 2,695,797 (1,223,050) 1,472,747 1,465,047 (7,700) (0.5%) 

Building 
Control 976,477 (833,593) 142,884 84,295 (58,589) (41.0%) 

Community 
Engagement 293,646 (28,000) 265,646 274,600 8,954 3.4% 

Culture & 
Leisure Mgmt 349,953 0 349,953 331,000 (18,953) (5.4%) 

Development & 
Policy 1,793,800 (1,428,100) 365,700 473,600 107,900 29.5% 

Growth 
Management 219,887 0 219,887 242,887 23,000 10.5% 

Investsk 906,712 (483,994) 422,718 406,518 (16,200) (3.8%) 

Leisure 3,068,750 (150,350) 2,918,400 2,940,000 21,600 0.7% 

Parks & Open 
Spaces 931,353 (122,250) 809,103 859,450 50,347 

6.2% 

Total 11,236,375 (4,269,337) 6,967,038 7,077,397 110,359 1.6% 

 

 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Arts Centres 

There is a net loss of income following a reduced programme for films and workshops 
across the centres during the first half of the year and live shows at the Meres leisure 
centre during 2022/23. This has partially been mitigated by Arts Council grant funding 
which has been received to contribute to the programme delivered.  

Festivals - The programme is currently under review so no further expenditure has 
been committed in 2022/23, resulting in an under spend (£30k) 

(8) 

Building Control 

The partnership trading account is now forecast to make a reduced deficit which will 
provide funding for re-investment into the service in future years 

(59) 

Development & Policy 

Levels of application numbers and the corresponding income levels reduced in 
December in comparison to previous years with fee income from major applications  
reduced by £130k and 200 fewer non-major applications compared to the same period 
last year, leading to a total forecast reduction in income for the year of £200k. This has 
been partially mitigated by in year vacancies. 

108 

 

 

 

 

41



Housing & Property 

Service 
Area 

Current 
Expenditur
e Budget  

Current 
Income 
Budget 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget  

2022/23 
 Forecast 
Outturn 

Forecast 
Variance  

 
 
Forecast 
Variance  

£ £ £ £ £ % 

Health & 
Safety 120,200 0 120,200 118,600 (1,600) (1.3%) 

Housing 
Services 1,519,205 (941,705) 577,500 574,500 (3,000) (0.5%) 

Property 
Services 4,990,203 (2,819,450) 2,170,753 1,984,440 (186,313) (8.6%) 

Waste 
Depot 279,000 0 279,000 279,000 0  0.0% 

TOTAL 6,908,608 (3,761,155) 3,147,453 2,956,540 (190,913) (6.1%) 
 
 

Explanation of Significant Variances £’000 

Property Services 

Car Parks - Operating costs and lower than budgeted usage across a number of car 
parks has resulted in a forecast variance of £26k 

Office Accommodation - Following implementation of new ways of working within the 
council offices, savings of £94k have been forecast. This will be partially offset with a 
reduced reserve movement 

St Martin’s Park - With progression of this project, there has been a reduction in 
revenue running costs for business rates and security services of (£161k). This will be 
offset with a reduced reserve movement 

(229) 

 

42



Appendix B

2022/23 - 2025/26 General Fund Reserves Statement

 

Balance at 31 

March 2022

Forecast 

Movement

Forecast Balance 

at 31 March 2023

Forecast 

Movement

Forecast Balance 

at 31 March 2024

Forecast 

Movement

Forecast Balance 

at 31 March 2025

Forecast 

Movement

Forecast Balance 

at 31 March 2026

Discretionary Reserves

1 Climate Change 31 (31) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2 Commercial 250 (250) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 Training and Development 15 (13) 2 0 2 0 2 0 2

4 Street Scene 117 (81) 36 0 36 0 36 0 36

5 ICT investment 500 (206) 294 0 294 0 294 0 294

6 Economic Development & Growth 32 (32) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7 Local Priorities Reserve 6,999 (2,750) 4,249 870 5,119 (33) 5,086 100 5,186

8 Invest to Save 809 (150) 659 0 659 0 659 0 659

9 Housing Delivery 1,797 0 1,797 (1,547) 250 0 250 0 250

10 Property Maintenance 113 408 521 0 521 0 521 0 521

11 Regeneration 1,085 (396) 689 (270) 419 (305) 114 (25) 89

11,748 (3,501) 8,247 (947) 7,300 (338) 6,962 75 7,037

Governance Reserves

12 Insurance Reserve 211 0 211 0 211 0 211 0 211

13 Pensions Reserve - Former Employees 308 (33) 275 (33) 242 (33) 209 (33) 176

14 Budget Stabilisation 4,531 (1,627) 2,904 (1,534) 1,370 0 1,370 0 1,370

15 Section 31 Grant Reserve 3,730 (3,730) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

16 Rev Grants Carried Forwards 549 (549) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

17 Building Control 76 (4) 72 (31) 41 (28) 13 (29) (16)

18 Football 3G Pitch 125 25 150 25 175 25 200 25 225

19 Special Expense Area Reserve 366 (114) 252 94 346 105 451 118 569

20 Inflation Reserve 500 (366) 134 0 134 0 134 0 134

10,396 (6,398) 3,998 (1,479) 2,519 69 2,588 81 2,669

21 Total General Revenue Reserves 22,144 (9,899) 12,245 (2,426) 9,819 (269) 9,550 156 9,706

Homelessness 257 (157) 100 0 100 0 100 0 100

New Burdens Grant 368 0 368 0 368 0 368 0 368

Neighbourhood Planning Grant 37 0 37 0 37 0 37 0 37

Individual Electoral Registration 82 (82) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Historic England 44 0 44 (44) 0 0 0 0 0

Grantham Growth 69 0 69 (69) 0 0 0 0 0

Welfare Reform 177 0 177 0 177 0 177 0 177

Blue Green Corridor 97 (97) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

22 Government Grants Received 1,131 (336) 795 (113) 682 0 682 0 682

23 Working Balance 2,010 (46) 1,964 (18) 1,946 0 1,946 0 1,946

24 Total Revenue Reserves 25,285 (10,281) 15,004 (2,557) 12,447 (269) 12,178 156 12,334

25 Capital Reserve

26 LAMS Reserve 18 0 18 (18) 0 0 0 0 0

27 General Fund Capital Reserve 155 (114) 41 18 59 0 59 0 59

28 Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 2,452 639 3,091 (107) 2,984 4,874 7,858 (2,302) 5,556

29 Total Capital Reserves 2,625 525 3,150 (107) 3,043 4,874 7,917 (2,302) 5,615

30 Total General Fund Reserves 27,910 (9,756) 18,154 (2,664) 15,490 4,605 20,095 (2,146) 17,949

43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C 

 
Housing Revenue Account Summary 2022/23  

 

Description 
2022/23 
 Original 
Budget 

2022/23 
Current 
Budget 

2022/23 
Forecast 

spend 

Forecast 
Variance 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Income         

Dwelling Rents (25,399) (25,399) (25,229) 170 

Non-Dwelling Rents (332) (332) (308) 24 

Charges for Services and 
Facilities 

(715) (715) (708) 7 

Other Income (66) (66) (51) 15 

Total Income (26,512) (26,512) (26,296) 216 

          

Expenditure         

Repairs and Maintenance 7,435  8,940 9,073 133 

Supervision and 
Management - General 

2,032 2,528 2,507 (21) 

Supervision and 
Management - Special 

1,405 1,534 1,494 (40) 

Depreciation and 
Impairment of Fixed 
Assets 

3,828 3,828 3,828  0    

Debt Management 
Expenses 

 35   35   35   0   

Provision for bad debts  383   383   383   0    

Other Expenditure 
(Pension Deficit) 

356 356 356  0  

Support recharge from 
General Fund 

2,787 2,787 2,787  0    

 Total Expenditure 18,261 20,391 20,463 72 
     

Net Cost of HRA 
Services 

(8,251) (6,121) (5,833) 288 

Interest Payable and 
Similar Charges 

2,335 2,335 2,335 0  

Interest and Investment 
Income 

(200) (200) (800) (600) 

     

Surplus for the year (6,116) (3,986) (4,298) (312)  

 

 

 

 

45



This page is intentionally left blank



2022/23 - 2025/26

HRA Reserves Statement
Appendix D

Balance at 31 

March 2022

 Forecast 

Movement 

Forecast 

Balance at 31 

March 2023

 Forecast 

Movement 

Forecast 

Balance at 31 

March 2024

 Forecast 

Movement 

Forecast 

Balance at 31 

March 2025

 Forecast 

Movement 

Forecast 

Balance at 31 

March 2026

 £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000 

Revenue Reserves

1 HRA Improvement Reserve 2,006 (2,006) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2 HRA Priorities Reserve 13,522 (475) 13,047 (1,505) 11,542 0 11,542 0 11,542

3 Residents Involvement 30 (30) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4 Working Balance 1,731 310 2,041 (310) 1,731 288 2,019 664 2,683

5 Total HRA Revenue Reserves 17,289 (618) 15,088 (1,815) 13,273 288 13,561 664 14,225

HRA Capital Reserve

6 HRA Capital Receipts Reserve 8,925 2,799 11,724 (1,043) 10,681 690 11,371 500 11,871

7 Major Repairs Reserve 18,527 292 18,819 (5,300) 13,519 (4,486) 9,033 (3,883) 5,150

8 Total HRA Capital Reserves 27,452 3,091 30,543 (6,343) 24,200 (3,796) 20,404 (3,383) 17,021

9 Total HRA Reserves 44,741 2,473 45,631 (8,158) 37,473 (3,508) 33,965 (2,719) 31,246

47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E – Finance Risk Register 
 

Risk 
Likeli-
hood 

Impact 

Residual 
Risk 

Score 
Mitigating Action 

1. Increase in borrowing interest 
rates 

3 3 9 
High 

Interest rates are continually monitored as they increased to an average of 3 - 4% 
compared to <1% 12 months earlier.  This has a positive impact on the investment 
income received although should the Council consider external borrowing then there is 
now an additional resource pressure as borrowing rates have increased significantly in 
the past few months 

2. Capital programmes requiring 
borrowing in the medium term  

4 3 12 
Very High 

Continue to undertake financial modelling to identify consequences of undertaking 
borrowing and align this with savings that will need to be approved before borrowing is 
undertaken in order to ensure ongoing affordability and financial sustainability. The 
capital programme can currently be financed without borrowing although this is kept 
under review. 

3. Lack of clarity for funding levels 
from 2024/25 and beyond  

3 3 9 
High 

The Government announced a one year settlement along with high level financial  
planning assumptions for 2024/25.  Any changes to the assumed levels will need to be 
modelled to assess their impact. 

4. Fluctuation in business rates 
2 2 4 

Medium 

The economic impact of the pandemic is yet to be fully determined which may have an 
adverse impact on the business rate base.  Monthly reviews are in place to assess any 
adverse impact on the collectible amount.  

5. Increase in bad debts as a result 
of economic circumstances 

3 2 6 
High 

The Council has pro-active debt management procedures in place. 

6. Increased maintenance costs of 
fixed assets 

3 2 6 
High 

The budget proposals for 2022/23 include a significant increase in the maintenance 
budgets for both leisure centres (£150k pa) and one-off budget of £400k.  The medium 
term outlook is a continuation of high levels of maintenance that will require financing  

7. Inflation increases beyond 
budgeted levels  

2 3 6 
High 

Budget assumptions kept up to date with most recent projections and monthly 
sensitivity analysis is produced to monitor the impact of inflationary increases. 

8. Fee Income volatility 2 2 4 
Medium 

Early monitoring of deviations and regular reporting to both budget holders and members. 

9. Fuel and utility price volatility  2 3 9 
High 

Weekly monitoring of fuel charge and proactive interventions to ensure optimisation of 
fuel consumption.  Utility cost increases will continue to have an adverse impact on the 
Council finances.    

49



10. Inadequate capital resources to 
finance future desired plans 

3 3 9 
High 

Asset disposal programme approved and pipeline of asset disposal in progress in order 
to generate capital receipts.  

 
 

50



 
 

       

Finance, Economic Development 
and Corporate Services Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

21 February 2023 
 
Councillor Robert Reid 
Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Property  
 
 

 

 

Disabled Facilities Grants 2022/23  
 

Report Author 

Anne-Marie Coulthard, Assistant Director of Operations and Public Protection  

 a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

This report provides a summary of the activity relating to Disabled Facilities Grants 

(DFGs) during quarters 1 to 3 of 2022/23. 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee 

1. Notes the progress on the delivery of disabled facilities grants during 
2022/23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

51

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Housing that meets the needs of all residents 

 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no direct financial considerations resulting from this report. Unspent 

budget from any year is carried forward for use in future years to enable demand 

to continue to be met. Government allocations are reviewed annually and at this 

time the allocations for 2023/24 have not been published.  

 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 The principal legal provisions are contained in the Housing Grants, Construction 

and Regeneration Act 1996 and associated regulations. The maximum amount of 

DFG is currently set by statute at £30,000 and has been at this level since 2008. 

 

1.3 The provision of discretionary assistance is detailed within the approved policy in  

accordance with The Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) (England and 

Wales) Order 2002. 

 

Completed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.4 A suitable home can help people with disabilities to build and sustain their 

independence and maintain connections in their community. 

 

52



1.5 As this report is for information there are no direct implications. However, the 

approved policy which provides the framework for the award of DFGs was subject 

to an Equality Impact Assessment. 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1 The Council has a statutory duty to provide financial assistance to those who 

qualify for a Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) to contribute towards adaptations 

which help them to safety access their home and the facilities within it.  Examples 

of adaptations include the installation of stair-lifts, ramps, through floor lifts, level 

access showers, wash and dry toilets and door widening.  In some instances, 

funding can contribute towards extensions or conversions of existing dwellings. All 

applications are required to be supported by a Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) 

Occupational Therapist.   

 

2.2 The funding is provided as a capital grant from government via the Better Care 

Fund and can fund adaptations for owner occupiers, private tenants, or tenants of 

private registered providers (housing associations).  Adaptations for council 

tenants are required to be funded through the Housing Revenue Account. 

 

2.3 Applications for adults are subject to a test of resources (“means test”), however, 

in 2017, the Council used its powers under the Regulatory Reform Order 2002 to 

approve a Housing Assistance Policy for Independent Living which extends the 

scope of assistance that can be provided beyond the mandatory DFG criteria.  

This includes a range of grants and removed the means test for applications for 

stairlifts and modular access ramps. The extended criteria aim to help more 

people maintain their independence safely at home, which also reduces pressures 

on health and social care services. 
 

2.4 The eligibility and requirements for determining DFGs are laid down in legislation. 

Before approving a DFG a local housing authority must satisfy itself that the works 

are necessary and appropriate to meet the needs of the disabled person, and are 

reasonable and practicable depending on the age and condition of the property.  

 

2.5 The service is provided within Public Protection, with installations procured using a 

Lincolnshire Framework used by all Lincolnshire district councils. The current 

framework provides the council with access to 18 contractors.  Stairlifts and 

modular access ramps are procured under separate arrangements.  Applicants 

may also choose to engage their own contractor and project manage the works 

themselves.  
 

2.6 The government allocation for DFGs for 2022/23 was £975,298, actual and 

committed spend at the end of quarter 3 against budget was £597,453.  A 

summary of the number of grants approved and adaptations completed in quarters 

1 to 3 is shown in table 1.  Note that some properties will have received more than 

53



one adaption per grant approval and grants may be approved in one financial year 

and works completed in the following financial year.   

 

Table 1:  Summary of adaptions Quarter 1 to Quarter 3, 2022/23 

 

Adaptation Type Number Approved  Number Completed  

Stairlift 15 22 

Ramp 20 26 

Level access 
shower/bathroom adaptation 

16 12 

Wash/dry toilet 2   2 

Extension 1   0 

Other e.g., door widening, 
stepped access, kitchen 
adaptations etc.  

16 14 

 

2.7 The demand for DFGs is dependent on recommendations for adaptations from the 

LCC Occupational Therapy service. During 2020/21 and 2021/22 the number of 

recommendations received reduced, this was largely due to the impacts of the 

Covid19 pandemic. Recommendations have increased during 2022/23 as LCC 

has focused additional resource in South Kesteven.  The number of applications 

that are cancelled or withdrawn varies and is dependent on a range of factors.  

Reasons for this can include; the applicant has passed away or gone into 

permanent care, the applicant does not qualify due to their level of 

income/savings, a private rented landlord refuses permission or an applicant 

decides not to continue with their application. Table 2 provides a summary of the 

demand and outcomes over the last 4 years.    

 

Table 2:  Summary of demand and outcomes 

 

 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22  2022/23 (Q1-3) 

Number of OT 
recommendations 
received 

188 146 140 168 

Number 
cancelled/withdrawn 

76 (40%) 38 (26%) 39 (28%) 24 (14%) 

Number of grants 
approved 

121 111 111 71 

Number of 
adaptations 
completed 

113 113 100 68 

 

2.8 The maximum entitlement of a mandatory DFG is set in legislation at £30,000.  

The average value of individual grants awarded in 2022/23 is £4,818, however, in 

recent years increased building costs have led to some schemes such as 

extensions substantially exceeding the maximum limit. Whilst these form a small 

proportion of adaptations, the time taken to support these cases can be 

54



considerable. To further assist, the Council’s discretionary policy allows for up to a 

‘top up’ of £10,000 to be awarded, subject to a means test.  

 

2.9 Nearly 76% of applications approved in 2022/23 were made by owner-occupiers, 

with the average age being 66 years old.  This is not surprising as many older 

people own their own homes.  

 

2.10 To increase capacity within the team to meet demand, in Q3 the surveyor 

resource was increased, and the role is now fully embedded into the team (this 

was previously a shared post with Property and Improvements).  An apprentice 

has also been appointed and will commence in February 2023.    

 

2.11 As the Social Care Authority, LCC has powers and duties under the Care Act 

relating to the provision of aids and equipment.  These include a duty to provide 

minor adaptations up to the value of £1,000 as well as other equipment to any 

value. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 Disabled facilities grants are “means” tested grants.  To support more disabled 

people to access adaptations the Council has used its discretionary powers to 

approve a policy which removed the means test for stairlifts and modular access 

ramps, and provides for a ‘top up’ to the maximum grant amount, funding for 

adaptations that support hospital discharge and “moving on assistance” to help 

disabled people move to a more suitable home where their current home cannot 

reasonably be adapted to meet their needs.   

 

3.2 DFGs fund essential adaptations to help disabled people to live in their home as 

independently as possible where this is appropriate.   

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 This report is for information only.  No decision is required to be taken.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 To provide an update to the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate 

Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the DFG programme during 

2022/23.  

 

6. Background Papers 
 

7.1 South Kesteven District Council Private Sector Housing Assistance Policy - 

Independent Living  

 

  

55

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8149
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8149


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

21 February 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Kelham Cooke, 
Leader of South Kesteven District 
Council 
 

 

Grantham Future High Streets Fund February 2023 

Update  
 

Report Author 

Alex Ward, Future High Streets Fund Programme Manager 

  alex.ward@investsk.co.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To update the Committee on progress in delivering Grantham’s transformational scheme 

being funded via central Government’s Future High Streets Fund.   

 

  

Recommendation 

It is recommended the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 

1. Agrees to receive a further update report later in the year as costs become 
more certain and for this to be included in the Work Programme    

 

 

 

57

Agenda Item 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

Yes  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities? 

• Growth and Our Economy 

 

Which wards are impacted? 
Grantham St Wulfram’s, 
Grantham St Vincent’s 

 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, staffing, 

community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s declaration 

of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 Whilst it was anticipated the programme delivery would be largely delivered in the 

final year (2023-24) it was envisaged a greater amount of spend would be resolved 

in 2021-2022 and 2022-2023. However, this has not proved possible as the 

programme is predominantly reliant on delivery and engagement by third parties.  

This has taken significantly longer to achieve than anticipated during the funding 

bid phase. 

 

1.2 The Council received the 2021-2022 Future High Street Fund (FHSF) allocation of 

£1,161,422 in June 2021 and did not require the proposed second tranche of 

funding for 2022-2023. Subject to the signing off the Year 3 Memorandum of 

Understanding, the Council will be in receipt of the final tranche of funding, 

£4,394,620 by June 2023.  The capital budget is set out in Table 1, showing actual 

spend for 2021-2022, projected outturn for 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 budget. 

 

Table 1: FHSF Capital Budget 

 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 Total  

Capital £39,382.70 £378,642.51 £5,138,016.79 £5,556,042 

    

1.3 The Council’s contribution to the FHSF supports the activities of the Town Team.  It 

funds the employment costs of the Engagement Manager and the footfall monitoring 

for Grantham town centre which is a requirement of The Department for Levelling 

Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC’s) Monitoring and Evaluation procedures. 

58



This budget provides promotional materials, such as lamppost column banner 

campaigns, event costs, small scale projects and digital marketing.   

 

1.4 For 2023-2024 and 2024-2025, the budget contains funding to commission support 

to develop and deliver a model for self-financing of the Town Team beyond the 

lifespan of the Council’s funding contribution.  This revenue funding is illustrated in 

Table 2. 

 

Table 2: FHSF Revenue Budget  

 2021-
2022 

2022-
2023 

2023-
2024 

2024-
2025 

Total 

Revenue  £5,000 £63,267 £144,715 £166,110 £379,092 

 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.5 The FHSF Work Programmes have been brought forward as a result of successful 

submissions and have regular input from legal professionals as appropriate with 

regard to land ownership, asset transfer, grant agreements and other areas, 

projects adhere to Procurement and Financial Regulations.  

 

Completed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring 

Officer  

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.6 The day-to-day administration of the FHSF is supported by the FHSF Programme 

Manager.  Governance and management arrangements have been developed in 

line with SKDC criteria.  

1.7 The Risk Assessment identifies the risks and impacts across the programme and 

proposed mitigation. The Risk Assessment is regularly reviewed by the FHSF 

Project Board and as part of the programme monitoring arrangements.  Risk 

assessments are reviewed on a regular basis by DLUHC through the Monitoring 

and Evaluation process. 

1.8 For each risk identified, mitigation and control measures have been identified to 

reduce the risk to an appropriate level and are being implemented. A copy of the 

Risk Assessment is available on request.  

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.9 The formation of a Town Team including the Grantham Shareholders will be from a 

wide stakeholder background, ensuring that a representative voice will be heard to 

support future plans for the town. 

59



1.10 The design of the public realm improvements will consider use and accessibility 

issues to ensure the proposed improvements enhance the visitor experience for all 

users of Grantham town centre. 

 

Climate Change 

 

1.11 Proposals will encourage sustainable transport choices and will improve walking 

and cycling environments.  Building retrofits will be undertaken to an optimised 

standard which will minimise carbon emissions and energy spend.  

1.12 Whilst there are identified limitations, the upper floor grants project is aiming for the 

new units created to achieve an EPC C (energy performance certificate).  To have 

an EPC of “C”, a property must have between 69 and 80 points on the Standard 

Assessment Procedure (SAP). This is a government-stipulated measure used by 

local energy assessors to judge a property's energy efficiency.  Encouraging reuse 

and repurposing of existing buildings within the town reduces the impact of 

embodied carbon within those structures. 

1.13 The redevelopment proposals of the strategic site and if deliverable, the wider LCR 

aspirations, will replace older less energy efficient buildings with more energy 

efficient new homes and other commercial buildings. Development partners will be 

encouraged to make these as energy efficient as possible, such as considering the 

use of highly efficient modular technology and if feasible, sustainable heating 

solutions and high-quality greening.   

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1 South Kesteven District Council recognises consumer patterns are changing, with 
spending increasingly being switched to online and expectations of high streets 
changing. In the Corporate Plan (2020 to 2023), the Council seeks to establish best 
practice in supporting the retail environment and is taking forward its approach to 
place-shaping within the main market towns across South Kesteven. A key action 
is to identify funding and other opportunities to support the development of town 
centres and apply lessons learned. For Grantham, this is a targeted approach to 
specific packages of work aimed at delivering transformational change as part of 
the Future High Streets Fund (FHSF).  

2.2 The Council worked hard to secure this funding and is working even harder to 

ensure the most is made of this once in a lifetime opportunity for residents. South 

Kesteven District Council was awarded £5.56 million (administered by the 

Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities - DLUHC) and will provide 

a total match contribution of £379,092 revenue funding to develop town centre 

leadership and promotional activities over the programme period. The capital 

programme runs until 31 March 2024, by which time all projects need to be 

completed and spend defrayed. The Council’s funding covers up to 31 March 2025.    

2.3 The FHSF programme, including the Council’s match, enables the delivery of five 
individual projects, four specific infrastructure projects, programme management 
and the creation of a Town Team supported by an Engagement Manager. A 

60



summary of the projects being delivered is set out below, with a plan showing 
individual scheme locations at Exempt Appendix A: 

• (A) Station Approach public realm – improved pedestrian and if possible cycling 
access between Grantham Railway Station and the town centre (Station Road 
and 5-Arm Junction).  

• (B) Market Place public realm improvements to create an open event space as 
a focal point for the town. 

• (C) Strategic site acquisition to enable Station Approach Mixed-Use 
Development Stage 1.  

• (D) Delivery of a grant programme to support the conversion of unused and 
underutilised upper floor retail space to residential accommodation. 

• To create a Town Team comprising key stakeholders and representatives to 
help promote the town and provide leadership on the future of Grantham. The 
Town Team will be supported by the Grantham Engagement Manager. 

2.4 The Committee last received a programme overview and update just over nine 
months ago (see Background Papers).   

 
2.5 The remainder of this background section focuses on programme updates, which 

has been divided into seven subsets: Public realm projects; Strategic site 
acquisition; Station Approach Masterplan; Upper Floor Grants Programme; 
Grantham Town Team, Programme Support and Recruitment; and a summary of 
engagement with the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
(DLUHC). 

   
Programme Update Subset One: Public Realm Projects (Market Place and Station 
Approach) 
 

2.6 Lincolnshire County Council’s Highways team (LCC) have been working on the 
detailed design of two programme public realm projects. Updates on progress, 
along with identified risks, follow.  

 
2.7 For the Market Place project, LCC’s decision to reverse the proposed closure of the 

Conduit Lane to through traffic has meant aspects of the scheme have been 
redesigned to allow for vehicular traffic.  Construction cost inflation has significantly 
impacted on this part of the scheme, with the global prices for aggregates (which 
this project is heavily dependent upon), having seen huge rises over the last 12 
months. This cost issue is considered in more detail below.  

 
2.8 For Station Approach, a significant part of Station Road is managed and maintained 

by London North Eastern Railways (LNER).  In the period between bid submission 
and confirmation LNER undertook significant investment in the roads under their 
management and to their car parking infrastructure. These improvements have 
upgraded both the pedestrian and vehicular infrastructure around the station, 
thereby delivering a significant proportion of the Station Approach scheme (albeit 
the works were not what had been envisaged in the original bid submission).  

 

61



2.9 The focus of this part of the programme is now to improve the LCC managed part 
of the Station Approach area, especially the 5-arm junction. 

 
2.10 As part of the overall works, LCC have agreed to bring forward future maintenance 

and improvement works scheduled in the area to include re-surfacing onto 
Harlaxton Road, the upgrading of traffic signals to heritage signals, new lamppost 
columns and improving the footpath on the north side of Wharf Road onto the 
southernmost part of Westgate. These enhancements were not foreseen within the 
original scheme.       

 
2.11 The key concern to project delivery is construction cost inflation. The original FHSF 

bid was submitted on cost estimates for both projects based upon prices provided 
by LCC in June 2020.  LCC provided a range of costings defined as minimum, likely 
and maximum. The funding envelope the bid proceeded on was the “likely” 
estimate. However, these LCC costings are now almost three years old. 

 
2.12 As the detailed design process has progressed, LCC have updated their costings.  

Table 3 illustrates the original quoted costs, the revised cost estimates and the 
variance. 

 

 Table 3: Lincolnshire County Council’s costings 

 Minimum Likely Maximum 
 

 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

R
e
v

is
e

d
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

R
e
v

is
e

d
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

R
e
v

is
e

d
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

 

Station 
Approach 

£527,100 £437,550 £89,550 £1,686,975 £559,584 £1,127,391 £2,445,000 £775,701 £1,669,299  

Market 
Place 

£307,600 £1,205,517 -£897,917 £822,188 £1,558,083 -£735,895 £1,135,469 £2,283,839 -£1,148,370  

TOTAL £834,700 £1,643,067 -£808,367 £2,509,163 £2,117,667 £391,496 £3,580,469 £3,059,540 £520,929  

 
 

2.13 The FHSF bid submission was based upon the “likely” cost at the time, which 
provided total funding of £2,509,163 for the two public realm schemes.  Due to the 
reduction in scope of the Station Approach scheme, the likely cost for both projects 
are now below the allocated budget at £2,117,667, which provides a contingency 
sum of £391,496. However, the key concern with continued rising prices is the 
actual cost may be closer to the maximum amounts suggested or even exceed 
them.  At the maximum quoted figure, the total price could be £3,059,540 which is 
£550,377 over budget. 

 
Market Place – Pedestrianised 
 

2.13 There is a more affordable way to deliver the Market Place scheme by 
pedestrianising the Market Place. This would result in a cost reduction by not 
delivering the Market Place scheme to an adoptable vehicular use standard. The 
costs of this option are illustrated in Table 4. 

62



 

Table 4: Market Place – Pedestrianised 

 Minimum Likely Maximum 

£673,013 £875,435 £1,281,979 

   
2.14 At the maximum cost level, this would give a total quoted spend of £2,057,680, 

offering a healthy budget contingency of £451,452. However, despite the 
pedestrianisation of parts of Grantham town centre being a confirmed strand of 
LCC’s recently published Grantham Transport Strategy (see Background papers), 
LCC are unwilling to move to pedestrianising the Market Place currently.  This is in 
part, due to the Southern Relief Road not being fully open, meaning LCC are not 
able to assess the impact of this new road on town centre traffic. 

 
2.15 In terms of refining costs, LCC are continuing to work with their preferred lead 

framework contractors on a value engineering exercise and plan to provide their 
final revised cost estimate early in March 2023. This cost will remain an estimate 
and actual cost certainty will not be known until the projects go out for contractor 
pricing later this year.    

 
2.16 The rise in costs presents a severe risk to the deliverability of the public realm 

schemes. Unless capacity can be found elsewhere in the FHSF programme, the 
Council can provide no additional funding on these programmes should costings be 
higher than the budgeted amounts.  Equally, LCC have been unequivocal they will 
not fund any additional spend requirements for the delivery of these two projects.   

 
2.17 Additionally, and of greater concern, is LCC stating they will not accept any 

contractual risk on the schemes and will not commit to any contract where the 
budget puts them at risk of additional spend. In this regard and if projects are 
approved, LCC will tender through a preferred framework provider, on Station 
Approach (the smaller of the two schemes) first, to get price certainty before 
committing to the Market Place project.  LCC will only commit to the Market Place 
scheme on the proviso there is no cost risk to them.   

 
2.18 LCC have scheduled decisions on these projects to be taken to their Highways and 

Transport Scrutiny Committee in May 2023. The FHSF Programme Manager is 
liaising with Democratic Services to agree the decision-making route for South 
Kesteven District Council to align with this timeframe.  As there has been a project 
change with the reduction in scope of the Station Approach scheme, agreement to 
a project adjustment will need to be sought from DLUHC.   

 
2.19 Encouragingly, LCC have specified there is sufficient time within the FHSF 

programme to deliver both projects.    
            

Programme Update Subset Two: Strategic Site Acquisition 
 

2.20 The strategic site acquisition aspect of the programme has proven to be the most 
difficult to deliver and represents the highest risk. The key risk being the Council’s 
ability to gain powers of Compulsory Purchase to guarantee site acquisition.  Whilst 
advice on the potential compensation implications was sought prior to submitting 
the funding bid, the procedural aspects of obtaining a Compulsory Purchase Order 

63



(CPO) were not fully considered as the bid focussed principally on the financial 
aspects, outcomes and outputs.    

 
2.21 Officers have taken advice from experts at Geldards LLP (Limited Liability 

Partnership) regarding the possibility of obtaining a CPO within the FHSF 
programme timeframe i.e. by 31 March 2024.  Geldards have advised there would 
be insufficient time to develop and obtain a CPO within the programme timeframe. 
It is likely this would have taken up to four years to achieve and therefore 
undeliverable within the remaining FHSF programme timeframe. A further 
complication is attempting to obtain a new CPO would be prejudiced by the 
attempted CPO by LCC of a wider site in 2012.   

 
2.22 Geldards liaised with the King’s Counsel (KC) who acted on behalf of LCC during 

the CPO public enquiry, Richard Harwood of 39 Essex Chambers.  The key reason 
the previously attempted CPO was unsuccessful was due to questions over the 
deliverability of the scheme proposed at the time.  The KC advised any newly 
proposed CPO should be carefully considered and developed strategically so there 
is a very strong case as to why the CPO is required, along with firm evidence of the 
Council and partners ability to deliver the scheme to which the CPO relates.    

 
2.23 The first phase of building a very strong case is to define the sites strategic 

importance for the regeneration and development of the town within planning policy. 
To progress this, the FHSF Programme Manager has liaised with the Council’s 
Planning Team.  As part of the current review of the Local Plan, in the recent Call 
for Sites process, the master planned site (developed by London and Continental 
Railways (LCR)) has been submitted and will go out for public consultation in March 
2023.  

 
2.24 Even though the delivery of a CPO is not an opportunity within the FHSF 

programme timeframe, this has not stopped attempts to acquire the site by 
agreement with the owners.  In line with the 2012 attempted CPO, the site owners 
have been consistent in their approach to selling the property and mandating a like 
for like alternative site to carry on trading in Grantham.  Following discussions, their 
requirements for a new site have been supplied for further consideration.  In 
partnership with LCR, their consultants and a local agent supporting the Council, 12 
potential alternative sites have been identified.  These sites have been assessed 
by the owners and subsequently ranked in order of preference.   

 
2.25 Due diligence was about to commence on these sites.  However, it was announced 

the owners had sold the trading group, including the Grantham property to a Danish 
company.  Officers and LCR have been liaising with the current owners to get 
updates on the current position.  To date, nothing has been confirmed aside from 
what has been published in the press which is the sale will be completed in March 
2023.                 

 
2.26 As the site acquisition is a programme high risk, alternative acquisitions have been 

considered by Officers and LCR.  Approaches have been made to owners of other 
sites, also of strategic importance in the master planned area, to see if there is a 
possibility these sites could be secured.  Some progress has been made by LCR 
and Officers and discussions are ongoing on these potential alternatives. 

64



 
2.27 Overall, the site acquisition remains the highest risk part of the overall FSHF 

programme.  The strategic case for a CPO will continue to be developed during the 
FHSF programme period, as will discussions with the current and new owners of 
the strategic site as well as potential alternative sites.  Depending on progress with 
the strategic site, a further update will be brought to Members for a decision on how 
to proceed.  If any alternative to the acquisition of the strategic site is considered, 
this will require sign off by DLUHC under the project change process.   
             
Programme Update Subset Three: London and Continental Railways – Station 
Approach Masterplan 
 

2.28 The comprehensive regeneration of the station approach area has been a long-
standing ambition of the Council. Officers have formed a close partnership with 
LCR, the development delivery arm of the Department for Transport, to consider a 
wider regeneration area incorporating the strategic site and wider station area.   

 
2.29 LCR, have developed a comprehensive masterplan incorporating approximately 

5.76 hectares (14.26 acres) of land held in six ownerships, including the Council 
and Network Rail.  The master planned area includes the strategic site and offers 
eight times the delivery opportunity of the strategic site in isolation. 

 
2.30 The ambition and scope of the masterplan is significant and is currently split into 

northern and southern delivery zones. The overall masterplan is residential led, 
unlike previous schemes which provided more commercial space. In terms of the 
northern zone, when delivered, this will provide:  

 

• New commercial space with 14 two-bed duplex apartments above 

• 27 one-bed flats  

• 72 two to three-bed houses 

• The potential for a new hotel – 648m² (6,975ft²) 

• Repurposed Victorian carriage works 

• A small to medium sized enterprises (SME) workspace hub – 828m² 
(8,913ft²)   

• New Station Square public realm 
  
2.31 As the northern delivery zone incorporates the strategic site, LCR are undertaking 

detailed feasibility work, including soft market testing with a range of developers 
including Modern Methods of Construction (MMC) providers.    

 
2.32 The southern delivery zone provides opportunities around the existing station 

infrastructure.  When delivered this will provide: 

• 63 one-bed flats  

• 92 two to three-bed houses 

• A new 400 space station car park with the potential for a new hotel/pub 

• New light industrial 2480m² (26,695ft²) 
 
2.33 The delivery of the masterplan is a long-term objective and will require a strong 

strategic partnership between the Council, LCR, Network Rail, and landowners who 

65



wish to support the scheme. When delivered, the master planned area will provide 
significant new and much needed housing in an area which is largely underutilised 
and in need of visual updating.  This new housing on the fringe of the town centre 
would provide more customers for town centre businesses. The promotion of the 
site would capitalise on new ways of working linking the fact that Grantham is an 
hour’s rail commute to London.   

 
2.34 To support delivery, Officers and LCR are working with other potential partners and 

funders including Homes England and have opened discussions with One Public 
Estate Lincolnshire.             

 
Programme Update Subset Four: Upper Floor Grants Programme 

2.35 The Upper Floor Grants programme is awarded at a grant rate of up to 50% per 
residential unit, to a maximum of £25,000. This grants scheme has progressed 
significantly since Members received their last FHSF update in May 2022.   

2.36 Following the Expression of Interest phase, all 22 grants have been allocated over 
six properties and across four different owners. An update on individual project 
progress is set out in Table 5: 

 

Table 5: Upper Floor Grant Provisional Projects 

Address Potential Units Status 

18-19 High Street 6 Detailed Design in progress 

31-33 St Peters Walk 8 Detailed Design in progress 

74a Westgate 1 Planning Decision pending 

90 Westgate 4 Planning Decision pending 

45 High Street 2 Planning Application pending 

40 Westgate 1 Planning Decision pending 

 

2.37 All projects are progressing well with the first planning decisions expected 
imminently. Applicants need to undertake a quotation/tender process before 
submission for approval of the final grant, following which the projects can start on 
site. The final submissions will be reviewed by the Officer Group and then forwarded 
to the FHSF Programme Board for decision.  Grant awards of £200,000 or more will 
require Cabinet approval.  Based upon the scheme progress to date, only one of 
the projects will be required to be referred to Cabinet.   

2.38 Legal Services Lincolnshire have developed the Grant Funding Agreement and will 
undertake due diligence on the applicant and administer the legal agreement.   It is 
critical the grant awards are processed as quickly as possible, not only to meet the 
programme deadlines, also due to construction cost inflation meaning quotation 
validity periods are much shorter.      

2.39 All projects are currently on track to be completed prior to the FHSF programme 
deadline, 31 March 2024.   

66



2.40 When completed, this part of the programme will provide the blueprint for how future 
town centre living can be delivered. The individual projects will provide high quality, 
energy efficient conversions, expected to command higher than normal town centre 
rental values.  It is envisaged the higher property return will encourage owners and 
investors into the market and the provision of an increased number of high-quality 
residential units will give dedicated footfall and trade to town centre businesses.    

     

Programme Update Subset Five: Grantham Town Team 

 

2.41 The Grantham Engagement Manager started on the 21 November 2022 and will 
lead on the activities of the Town Team as set out to follow.  

 
2.42 The Grantham Town Team is being established to:  
 

• Act as the Champions of Grantham, promoting the town internally and 
externally 

• Provide new ideas and concepts of how Grantham can develop in the future 

• Support the development of a continuous programme of events and 
promotional activities 

• Provide a sounding board for new policy and strategy to develop and 
regenerate Grantham   

• Assist with generating funding and sponsorship for events and promotional 
activities 

 
2.43 The Town Team is to be comprised of arrange of key stakeholders representing the 

broadest cross-section of the Grantham community, including business and 
community interests. The first meeting of the Town Team is scheduled for 6 March 
2023. It is also envisaged that a wider Grantham shareholder group will be formed 
virtually to further enhance the consultative and collaborative nature of the Town 
Team for a sounding board for the development and promotion of the town.  
Representatives invited to join the Town Team have already collaborated with the 
Council during the Welcome Back Fund on the development of branding for 
Grantham.  

2.44 At the inaugural meeting, a draft Action Plan (developed by Officers and approved 
by the Programme Board) will be presented for consideration. This is attached at 
Appendix B. 

2.45 Once approved, the Action Plan will be progressed by members of the Town Team 
led by the Grantham Engagement Manager. To take advantage of and bring life to 
the infrastructure assets developed during the FHSF programme, the Town Team 
will operate for a further year i.e. until 31 March 2025.  To keep the work of the Town 
Team going beyond the Council funded period, it will be a key part of the Town 
Team Action Plan to develop and implement ways in which it can be self-funded 
beyond its 2025 lifespan.  

 

    

 

67



Programme Update Subset Six: Programme Support and Recruitment 
 

2.46 A Programme Support Officer commenced work on the 31 October 2022 and will 
support the FHSF, UK Shared Prosperity Fund and High Street Heritage Action 
Zone.   

 
Programme Update Subset Seven: Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities 

 
2.47 The Programme Manager and Programme Support Officer meet with DLUHC 

funding delivery managers monthly to provide updates on progress and issues.  
 

2.48 Since this Committee’s last report in May 2022, two cycles of DLUHC programme 
Monitoring and Evaluation have been submitted (June and December 2022) along 
with an annual Statement of Grant Assurance.  These reports are prepared by the 
Programme Manager and signed off by the S151 Officer and Chief Executive as the 
programme’s Senior Responsible Owner.  Officers are awaiting feedback on the 
December 2022 Monitoring and Evaluation submission.     

 
2.49 Comfort should be taken the Council are not the only grant recipient who are 

experiencing difficulties with programme delivery, particularly around costs.  In fact, 
DLUHC have confirmed over 50% of the FHSF programmes have submitted project 
change requests and are anticipating this will rise.  

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 In delivering under FHSF, the Council is committed to supporting a programme of 

monitoring and evidence that will last beyond the bid project.  

 

3.2 Recent risks associated with abnormal inflation are being managed through usual 

project management processes, as well as with the regular funding body, DLUHC.  

 

3.3 The FHSF programme must be delivered by 2023/2024. Match funding may support 

delivery in later years, however all FHSF monies must be spent by March 2024.  

Whilst spent funding is not at risk, as funds are issued under a Section 31 grant, 

there is pressure to deliver to spending profiles as agreed with the funder.  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 Significant progress has been made with the delivery of the FHSF in the preceding 

nine months since Members were last updated.  Whilst there are future challenges 

anticipated, it remains key for the development and promotion of Grantham that this 

programme is delivered. Therefore, closing the programme and returning any 

unspent allocation received to DLUHC has been discounted as an option.    

 

 

 

68



5. Reason for the Recommendation 
 

5.1 The FHSF will provide infrastructure improvements to help unlock the potential of 

Grantham and assist in the promotion of the town as a place to live, work and visit. 

The reason for the recommendation is to ensure Members are aware of the FHSF 

programme, it’s progress and any known implications arising.  

6. Background Papers 
 

6.1 Grantham Transport Strategy – Summary document produced by Lincolnshire 

County Council, published December 2022, available online at:  

https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/7215/grantham-transport-strategy-

summary 

 

6.2 Grantham Future High Streets Fund - Report to Finance, Economic Development 

and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee, published 3 May 2022, 

available online at:  

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34117/Report.pdf 

 

7. Appendices 

 
7.1 Appendix A – Exempt plan showing individual scheme locations not for publication 

7.2 Appendix B - Draft Grantham Town Team Action Plan  

 

 

69

https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/7215/grantham-transport-strategy-summary
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/7215/grantham-transport-strategy-summary
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s34117/Report.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 | P a g e  
 

APPENDIX B 

GRANTHAM TOWN TEAM – ACTION PLAN FRAMEWORK  (UNTIL 31 03 2025) 

ACTIVITY PURPOSE  POTENTIAL/CONFIRMED ACTIVITIES 
Grantham Engagement Manager To act as an Ambassador for Grantham positively promoting 

the town internally and externally. 
To build a strong, engaged and active Town Team 
stakeholder group focussed upon the positive development 
and promotion of Grantham.  
To identify and support the delivery of initiatives and 
activities which will enhance the quality of Grantham town 
centre.   

Recruitment to commence 24/8/22. 
Postholder starts 21/11/22. 
Contract until 31/3/25.   

Town Team Act as the champions of Grantham, positively promoting the 
town internally and externally. 
Provide new ideas and concepts of how Grantham can 
develop. 
Support the development of a continuous programme of 
events and promotional activities.   
Assist with generating funding and sponsorship for events 
and promotional activities. 
Provide a sounding board for new policy and strategy to 
develop Grantham. 
Key decisions including financial rest with Council 

Agree key stakeholders and shareholders and 
invite to introductory event.  
“Town Hall” meeting to present:  

• the concept,  

• draft Action Plan for discussion,  

• funding and opportunities  

• end game  
Meeting to include Cabinet Members and Senior 
Officers. 
Working Group membership and next steps – to 
be confirmed. 
Work with businesses/agencies to deliver 
outcomes suggested.  
Look at opportunities for wider community 
engagement including with youth 
groups/individuals who are the next generation 
of town centre users and should be involved in 
shaping it. 

73

https://www.midlandsengine.org/


 

2 | P a g e  
 

ACTIVITY PURPOSE  POTENTIAL/CONFIRMED ACTIVITIES 
Promotion Whilst Grantham has many highly positive elements 

including location, connectivity and historic environment it 
seems unable to capitalise on these advantages and 
consistently loses market share to competitor towns and 
cities (Newark, Melton, Stamford, Peterborough, 
Nottingham). 
This needs to change and Grantham needs positive 
promotion going forward. 
Utilising the Welcome Back Fund a branding concept for 
Grantham has been created as well as a District wide town 
app (HelloSK) which forms the basis for wider internal and 
external promotion.        
 
These tools provide a basis but work needs to be 
undertaken on who Grantham is seeking to attract and how 
they will be attracted. 
 
  

Consider Strategic Targetting – who are the 
visitors to Grantham and who are we aiming at?  
Examine footfall data, where are the visitors 
coming from? 
Map our existing promotional materials and 
media collateral/channels. 
Implement Station Approach new lamppost 
column brackets and “Welcome to Grantham” 
banners – also promoting the HelloSK app.  
Look at existing marketing collateral/groups and 
the potential to develop these further, this 
includes:     

• HelloSK  

• Engineered in Grantham – town centre? 

• Grantham Branding – Looking Up  

• Focus on Independent Grantham – 
Independents Day, Small Business 
Saturday, AMEX small biz    

Work with the two shopping centres on a joint 
campaign. 
Consider joint promotional activities with LNER, 
Woodland Trust and National Trust.  

Town Trails (SPF/HAZ link) Aim of the trails would be to attract visitors with easy to 
follow introductory and themed trails in the town which will 
improve footfall and dwell time.   
Close work will be required with businesses and other 
agencies who could capitalise on these trails especially 
those in the hospitality sector.  
The trails could also be further promoted as an add-on to 
the events programme.  

Learn from successes of other similar towns. 
Consider opportunities for physical/digital trails  

• Link to HAZ – Grantham Trumps/Blue 
Plaque Trail. 

• The Newton pilgrimage – link to 
Woolsthorpe Manor/National Trust 

• Trails linking Belton - Harlaxton 

• Food related - coffee, cocktail, beer, 
vegan, gluten free, sustainably sourced, 
etc.  

74

https://www.midlandsengine.org/


 

3 | P a g e  
 

ACTIVITY PURPOSE  POTENTIAL/CONFIRMED ACTIVITIES 
Trails to be developed in conjunction with Bubltown/3rd 
party app provider and used on the app as well as hard 
copy.  

• Dog friendly.  

• Brass floor plaque trail 
Develop potential and cost delivery of these – 
sponsorship and other funding opportunities to 
be considered. 

Events (external funding link) Events are a key driver of footfall and dwell in town centres 
as well as acting as a promotional tool for the town.  
 
It is crucial to have an active programme of events in the 
town as a precursor to the improvement works at the 
Market Place and to cement this once it is open to create an 
active heart space on the town. 
 
This will require close liaison with the Arts and Parks Teams 
as well as with external providers on and around the town 
so that we can exploit the opportunities provided by linking 
events. 
 
Event sustainability will be a crucial factor to be considered 
as this part of the Action Plan develops.   
 
Consider opportunities at: 

• Market Place 

• Sir Isaac Newton Centre/George Centre 

• St Peters Hill 

Devise and cost a programme of Town Centre 
Events with delivery management detailed.   

• Consider enhance delivery of other 
events – e.g. Mid Lent Fair, Christmas 

• Consider concept/delivery/funding of 
some medium – large sized (Gravity 
Fields scale) events in town – look at 
funding opportunities for this. 

• Welcome Back Folk Festival Annual in 
Summer aim for 2023 to build on original 
event & include Guildhall with touring 
headline act) 

• Food Festival (Gingerbread). 

• Beer Festival – link to St Wulfram’s. 

• Shop Front competitions – prizes. 

• Themed treasure hunt – prizes. 

• Events for next generation of town 
centre users - 13-17 years. 

Events should aim to become financially 
sustainable: 

• Consideration should be given to 
sponsorship opportunities/external 
funding/monetisation of concessions for 
events.  

Markets (Link to SPF) Markets are a key footfall driver and the establishment of a 
high-quality market offer in Grantham is a key priority. 

Work with the Markets Team to examine the 
opportunities for an enhanced market offer in 

75

https://www.midlandsengine.org/


 

4 | P a g e  
 

ACTIVITY PURPOSE  POTENTIAL/CONFIRMED ACTIVITIES 
 
There is a strong link here to the SPF programme and the 
Town Team should work closely with the programme leads 
on this.  As a result this work could go way beyond 
Grantham and be an active opportunity for a potential 
series of markets around the key towns on a rotational 
basis. 
 
A variety of markets could be considered including farmers, 
continental, artisan/craft (food and goods) and night-
markets. Larger scale markets could be supported by events 
e.g. musical acts, child/family entertainment.  
 
The aim would also be to attract local traders and suppliers 
to create a truly sustainable market offer.  
Whilst both the FHSF and SPF could provide seed funding to 
set the markets up, the aim would be for markets to be self-
financing/making a profit in the future. 

the town, which would be complementary to the 
existing market. 
Look at the opportunity to bring the market back 
on to the Market Place once the works are 
completed. 
Potentially commission a piece of work by a body 
such as NABMA to explore the viability of a 
market offer and identify local 
operators/businesses who will grasp the 
Grantham opportunity 
Look at alternative/specialist markets including 
night markets.   
Consider promotional opportunities for markets. 
Actions following Markets Review Report to 
FEDCO.  

Self-Funded Model The Council cannot continue to fully support the activities of 
the Town Team.  A key aim of the Town Team will be to 
create a self-financing model to be implemented beyond 
the Council’s funding support for the initiative.  Examples of 
self-funded models could include:    

• Ambassador Programme (TBC) 

• Town Centre Management Company 

• Business Improvement District  

Recruitment of consultancy support to develop 
model, work with Town Team and other partners 
to establish preferred model. 
Drive agreed model forward for implementation 
post 31/3/25. 

Footfall Monitoring Supports the Monitoring & Evaluation of the Future High 
Streets Fund programme. 
Monitors the success of promotional activities and events  
Enhances SK's tourism and visitor economy offer.                                      
Supports the preparation of town centre funding 
opportunities.                          

Maintain receipt of footfall data, analyse the 
data and report back on gaps/opportunities. 
 
Manage event success through evaluation of this 
data.  

76

https://www.midlandsengine.org/


 

5 | P a g e  
 

ACTIVITY PURPOSE  POTENTIAL/CONFIRMED ACTIVITIES 
Supports the production of a Tourism Strategic Framework 
for the District, especially the Grantham elements. 
Supports the development of a series of package/place 
offers to encourage longer ‘stay time’ in the Town. 

Small Improvement Projects – Seed 
Funding (SPF link)  

Opportunities for smaller scale improvement projects to be 
developed.   
 
These must enhance the built environment and achieve 
prescribed goals including:  

• addressing void units 

• areas of perceived deprivation  

• add value to the visitor experience.  

• Street Stories – see Leicester BID. Will 
improve empty units – could be other 
aspects of public realm local history (bus 
shelters, Sir Isaac Newton Centre?) 
where it happened.  These would be 
inventive, creative and eye-catching 
displays.  This could link to trails etc   

• Work with management team at Sir Isaac 
Newton Centre to develop link to S.I.N. 
with displays in the centre.  Note they 
are currently working with National Trust 
on this.  This could link to trails etc.   

• Greening, working with the Woodland 
Trust and consider opportunities for 
sponsored planting, baskets etc around 
town. Meetings progressing. 

• Wayfinding – Station Road – Railway 
terrace jitty fingerpost.  Working with 
LNER/LCC improved directional signage 
from Wharf Road.  Review of vehicular 
wayfinding signage with LCC.  

Major Projects – Funding Bids (SPF 
link) 

Consider opportunities for financially significant 
improvement programmes within Grantham as well as 
opportunities to fund them, including S106 and external 
opportunities. 
 

Connected Town.   
Consider appetite and economic benefits of 
publicly accessible Wi-Fi as well as a greater 
understanding of the financial commitments 
related to this.  Potential connectivity to footfall 
monitoring and HelloSK.   
 

77

https://www.midlandsengine.org/


 

6 | P a g e  
 

ACTIVITY PURPOSE  POTENTIAL/CONFIRMED ACTIVITIES 
Funding should always come with an ongoing maintenance 
dowry to allay fears around commitments to future Council 
budgets. 
 
Examples could include: 

• Connected town – publicly accessible wi-fi 

• Street/public art projects  

• Safe Streets – aiming for Purple Flag on night-time 
economy – see detail below. 

Public art projects  

• Potential replacement for Orrery on 
Market Place 

• Newton “window” between 19-20 
Market Place  

• Gateway murals – Station Road retaining 
wall and adj. 40 Westgate with 
LNER/owner. 

• 5-arm junction railway tunnels with 
LNER/Network Rail 

• Old post office – St Peters Hill 

Evening/Night-time economy Significant gap between the closure of day-time business 
and the late night economy which is an opportunity lost.  
This needs to be confirmed through examination of footfall 
data. 
Aim to work with businesses to see what opportunities 
there are for extended opening in conjunction with 
evening/night-time events initially.  
Aspiration will be to work on achieving Purple Flag status. 
Purple Flag is an international accreditation programme 
awarded to locations which deliver excellence in the 
Evening and Night-Time Economy. 
Purple Flag strives to help create safe and thriving locations 
at night for all users and rewards those who achieve this in 
their destinations after dark.  

In conjunction with developing the events 
programme work with businesses and other 
agencies, such as the Police, Licensing Team to 
examine what the issues are to later opening and 
develop a plan as to how these barriers can be 
overcome with trial events.    
Research the requirements for Purple Flag status. 
With stakeholders, devise a costed timebound 
plan of what Grantham needs to do to achieve 
this.   
Consider use of Safer Streets Funding for women 
and girls – GEM to join working group 
Implement the agreed Delivery Plan. 
To note the delivery of Purple Flag status could 
progress beyond the lifespan of the Town Team 
programme.  

 

 

 

78

https://www.midlandsengine.org/


 
 

       

Finance, Economic 
Development & Corporate 
Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

21 February 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Kelham Cooke 
The Leader of the Council 
 

 

 

Housing Stock Condition Update 
 

Report Author 

Craig Spence, Acting Director of Housing  

  Craig.spence@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To provide Committee with an update on how the data from the recent stock condition 

surveys is informing our future budget, grant application and asset management of 

Housing Revenue Account assets. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee: 

1. Notes the contents of the report and the ongoing commitment to regularly 
update the stock condition data. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

79

Agenda Item 11

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

Housing that meets the needs of all residents 

 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal 

and governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, 

safeguarding, staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the 

impact on the Council’s declaration of a climate change emergency, the following 

implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The information from the stock condition survey is vital to enable the HRA to target 

it’s resources and invest in the housing stock that is requiring the investment.  It is 

important the information is maintained and updated in order to ensure the future 

development of investment continues to be based on accurate information.  

 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 The updates to Committee allow members to track progress on the outcome of the 

stock condition surveys and the ability to make informed data led decisions in 

relation to our housing stock.  

 

Completed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

 

Climate Change 

 

1.3 The completion and regular update of stock condition surveys allows for an 

improved understanding of energy performance of the housing stock, and 

identification of priority properties and archetypes to address. Decision making on 

any capital investment or grant bids such as the Social Housing Decarbonisation 

Fund can be led by information on individual properties. 

 

Completed by: Serena Brown, Sustainability and Climate Change Officer 

80



 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The Council has a clear commitment in its Corporate Plan 2020-2023 to provide 

“Housing that meets the needs of all residents” and the timely delivery of 

improvements to its social housing stock is key to achieving this. 

To enable effective planning and delivery of investment programmes we must 

make data led decisions. The programmes are identified by examining stock 

condition data from our properties and understanding the serviceable life of key 

components 

 

2.2 In the financial year 2021-22 the Council committed to revising their Stock 

Condition data through the completion of individual surveys to each of their HRA 

owned properties. A contractor was sourced, and the surveys were undertaken by 

Faithorn, Farrell and Timms (FFT). This was required due to the historic data held 

within the APEX asset management system. The contract was a one-year contract 

with payment made on a per property basis. 

 

2.3 The stock condition surveys were undertaken across all asset types including our 

communal blocks and shared areas, for residential unit we also commissioned the 

completion of an Energy Efficiency Certificate (EPC). The number of surveys 

completed during the contract period can be found at Appendix One – Stock 

Condition Survey completions 2022. Assurance can be given that surveys were 

undertaken on all property types and streets across the District. 

 

2.4 It is important for the service to proactively plan to refresh its stock condition data 

in a planned manner, to that end we shall be undertaking stock condition surveys 

on circa 20% of our stock each year to ensure that our data set is refreshed every 

five years. The Council shall also expand the survey specification to include 

elevated walkways, car parks and any emerging risks in the future. This year’s 

surveys shall focus on those properties that were not completed within the original 

contract. 

 

2.5 Informing Capital Budget decisions 

 

The data has been used to formulate our capital budget setting process for the 

coming years and shall be used to inform the HRA business plan and ongoing 

affordability. 

Appendix Two – the proposed HRA Capital programme for the period 2023/24 – 

2025/26provides details of the planned completion of capital works for the next 

three years with the appropriate budgets included. 

 

2.6 Informing Funding Bids 

 

The completion of EPC (Energy Performance Certificate) information during the 

stock condition completion has enabled us to compile an evidence-based bid to 

81



the SHDF (Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund). This bid aims to address the 

energy efficiency requirements of our stock aiding us to meet our climate change 

promise by reducing the carbon footprint of these homes alongside aiding to 

reduce fuel poverty to some of our most needy households. The ability to draw 

upon this data aided us greatly in the bid compilation and resulted in a bid that if 

successful will aid us to address 333 properties at a total value of £7,265,997 with 

47% £3,418,480 of this total to be forthcoming from the grant application. We 

anticipate the bid outcome prior to the commencement of the financial year 

2023/24. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 This report provides members with examples of how the data collected from the 

stock condition surveys is being used pro-actively to shape future spending and 

investment decisions within our housing stock. 

 

3.2 The report highlights the value of having current data available to enable effective 

bid compilation to government grant schemes. 

 

4. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

4.1 The report provides committee with an update on the outcome of the stock 

condition surveys and the ability to make informed data led decisions in relation to 

our housing stock. 

 

5. Background Papers 
 

5.1 List any background papers and where they can be accessed. 

 

6. Appendices 
 

6.1 Appendix One – Stock Condition Survey completions 2022 

6.3 Appendix Two – HRA Capital template 2023-2025 

 

 

82



Appendix One – Stock Condition Survey completions 2022 

 

The below table details the percentage completion of surveys by property type 

 

 

 

83



This page is intentionally left blank



Energy Efficiency Initiatives

1 Central Heating, Ventilation and boiler replacements Major Repairs Reserve

5,191

5,191

ICT

2 Housing System Enhancements HRA Priorities Reserve 0

0

Purchase of Vehicles

3 Repairs Vehicles Major Repairs Reserve 0

0

New Build Programme

4 Housing Development Investment Capital Receipts Reserve 3,000

3,000

Refurbishment and Improvement

 Compliance Works

5 Re-wiring Major Repairs Reserve 900

6 Lifts Major Repairs Reserve 120

7 Alarms Major Repairs Reserve 125

8 Fire Protection
 HRA Priorities Reserve/  

Major Repairs Reserve 1,035

9 Compliance works Major Repairs Reserve 100

2,280

 Other Works

10 Disabled Adaptations Major Repairs Reserve 300

Ref Description  Funding Source 

2023/24 

Proposed 

Budget 

£000

85



300

 Scheduled Works

11 Re-roofing Major Repairs Reserve 1,069

12 Exterior Refurbishment Major Repairs Reserve 350

13 Kitchen Refurbishment Major Repairs Reserve 420

14 Bathroom Refurbishment Major Repairs Reserve 500

15 Doors & Windows Major Repairs Reserve 962

16 Communal Rooms Major Repairs Reserve 35

17 Door Entry systems Major Repairs Reserve 100

18 External Wall Finishes Major Repairs Reserve 625

19 Structural Refurbishment Major Repairs Reserve 150

4,211

20 14,982

HRA FINANCED BY:

21 HRA Capital Receipts Reserve 3,000

22 HRA Priorities Reserve 1,035

23 Major Repairs Reserve 10,947

24 14,982

Total HRA Capital Programme

Total HRA Capital Programme Financing

86



333 Boiler upgrades

225 heating system upgrades

2 Communal heating systems
5,489

333 Boiler upgrades

250 heating system upgrades
5,796

333 Boiler upgrades

250 heating system upgrades

5,489 5,796

0 0

0 0

204 674

204 674

2,810 3,000

2,810 3,000

200 990 200 1,089 200

1 0 0 0 0

167 0 0 0 0

138 412 50 0 0

100 110 100 121 100

1,512 1,210

60 325 60 350 60

Target Number of Properties 

on Programme

2024/25 

Indicative 

Budget 

£000

2025/26 

Indicative 

Budget 

£000

Target Number of Properties 

on Programme

Target Number of Properties 

on Programme

87



325 350

113 1,176 113 1,034 100

25 385 25 339 25

100 577 137 508 121

200 179 65 157 57

175 1,058 175 932 165

2 35 2 28 2

25 100 25 0

50 688 50 605 45

2 165 2 145 2

4,363 3,748

14,703 14,778

2,810 3,000

0 0

11,893 11,778

14,703 14,778

88



 
 

       

Finance, Economic 
Development and 
Corporate Services 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
21 February 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Nick Robins 
Portfolio Holder for Planning and 
Planning Policy 
 
 

 

 

Section 106 (Planning Obligations) Agreement 

Monitoring Update Report 
 

Report Author 

Emma Whittaker, Assistant Director of Planning 

  Emma.whittaker@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To provide an overview of the Section 106 (planning obligation) process, an update on 

recruitment and the recent Infrastructure Funding Statement. 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 

1. Agrees to receive proposals on a new charging framework for the monitoring 
of Section 106 allocations, at a future meeting. 

 

 

 

 

89

Agenda Item 12

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

• Growth and our economy 

• Housing that meets the needs of all residents 

• Healthy and strong communities 

• Clean and sustainable environment 

• High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All Wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 
Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 
governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 
staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 
declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 
 

Finance and Procurement  
 
1.1 The expenditure relates to Section 106 (s106) funds specifically for the purpose of 

mitigating impacts from development. The parameters for expenditure (in particular 
the location and type of project that can be supported) are prescribed in the S106 
agreement.  
 

1.2 The report sets out the current status of the amount of s106 funds held by the 
Council. The Council is required to publish an annual Funding Statement each year 
which provides total transparency of the funds received and how they are distributed 
and utilised. 

 
Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 
Legal and Governance 

 
1.3 S106 agreements are secured under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990 (as amended) to support projects that mitigate the impact of development. 
The Council has an obligation to spend the funds in accordance with the terms of 
the agreement which are agreed prior to the grant of planning permission. 

 
Completed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring 
Officer  

 
 
 
 

90



Risk and Mitigation 
 
1.4 There is a risk of funds not being collected or spent in accordance with the s106 

agreement. To address this, where any s106 funds are passed to community groups 
to develop and deliver projects, offers of grants will be made with appropriate terms 
and conditions securing the interest of the Council and ensuring the requirements 
of the S106 agreements are adhered to.  
 

1.5 There is a risk of funds not being collected in accordance with the s106 agreement.  
A key objective of the Infrastructure Delivery Officer is to ensure all monies are 
collected.  
 

1.6 Some s106 agreements have ‘clawback’ clauses allowing the developers to be re-
paid the money if it is not spent within a certain timeframe.  There is therefore a risk 
of communities losing out if money is not spent within specific timeframes. Careful 
monitoring by the Infrastructure Delivery Officer will prevent this from happening.  
 

1.7 There is a risk of funds not being spent in accordance with community aspirations 
and community benefits may not be secured for the long term.  Any recipients of 
grant offers will need to hold necessary powers and have suitable organisational 
structures in place. Where necessary, Community Use Agreements will be 
implemented to secure long term community use of facilities funded by s106 
contributions.  
 

2. Background to the Report 
 
2.1  The planning system plays a key role in the delivery of outcomes to support 

economic growth and sustainable neighbourhood across South Kesteven.  This 
includes housing and commercial development as identified in the Council’s Local 
Plan.  This, along with the delivery of environments and development that respond 
to the Councils climate change and quality agenda are key to achieving the priorities 
in the Council’s Corporate Plan (2020-2023).   

 
2.2 Planning Obligations, also known as Section 106 Agreements (s106), can be 

requested under the Town and County Planning Act (1990) (as amended) and are 
legal agreements used to mitigate the impact of a proposed development where it 
is not possible to do so by condition. Such agreements are legally binding and are 
entered int between a local planning authority and the owner and developers of land 
on which planning permission is sought. Such agreements may include obligations 
to undertake work and obligations to make a payment. Typically, they are used to 
secure infrastructure such as affordable housing, highways improvements, 
education contributions and leisure facilities such as open space and play parks. 
The obligations are focused on site specific mitigation of the impact of the 
development.  

 
2.3 When planning obligations are negotiated, it is necessary to ensure that Planning 

Officers consider the requirements of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations (2010) (CIL Regulations), the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) and the Local Plan.  Regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations stipulates that 

91



a planning obligation can only be a reason for granting planning permission where 
it meets all the following three tests: 

 
a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 

b) directly related to the development; and 

c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

2.4  The NPPF reiterates these tests and confirms that planning obligations should only 
be used where it is not possible to address unacceptable impacts through a 
condition. The NPPF also confirms where up-to-date policies have set out the 
contributions expected from development, planning applications that comply with 
them should be assumed to be viable and it is for the applicant to demonstrate 
otherwise. 

2.5  Planning Obligations either require the provision of infrastructure directly on the site 
itself or they can require a contribution or commuted sum towards provision 
elsewhere.  They can also be used to restrict the use of the land in a particular way.  
These agreements run with the land and are legally binding.   

2.6 South Kesteven District Council’s requirements for Section 106 agreements are set 
out in the Council’s Local Plan and the adopted Planning Obligations 
Supplementary Planning Document (June 2012).  Planning officers will negotiate 
planning obligations based on policy requirements and to mitigate any adverse 
impacts of a development proposal.   

2.7 Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) will often be a party to these agreements.  In 
these instances, contributions for matters such as Highways and Education will be 
monitored, collected and spent by directly by LCC.  In most other circumstances, 
South Kesteven District Council is the accountable body for the collection and 
spending of any contributions. Any funds collected must be spent in accordance 
with the terms of the legal agreement the Council will have already entered into with 
the landowner or developer prior to the grant of the planning permission. Unspent 
contributions should be paid back to developers and there will often be clauses 
within planning obligations to this effect. 

2.8  Following the meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee on 21 October 2021, 
it has been confirmed the reporting of performance in relation to S106 monitoring 
be considered by this Committee. 

 

Infrastructure Funding Statement 

 

2.9 In accordance with requirements set out in the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019, the Council is required to publish 
an Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS). The first IFS was published in December 
2020 and should be updated annually. The most recent IFS was published in 
December 2022 (Appendix A). 

2.10 The IFS summarises the Council’s position in relation to Section 106 funds the 
Council holds, what funds have been spent in the Reporting Period and what has 
secured for the future.  In particular, the Committee should note the high level 
summaries on (Appendix A) pages 5-6 (tables 1-3). 

92



2.11 The legislation sets out the IFS should, as a minimum contain the following 
information:  

 

• details of new planning obligations which were agreed upon during the reported 
year  

• the amount of money which was received during the reported year  

• the monies which have either been allocated or expended within the reported year 

• the amount of monies retained at the end of the reported year  

• a breakdown of any non-monetary obligations. 
 

2.12 The IFS sets out a detailed breakdown of the planning obligations entered into in 
2021/2022, along with the affordable housing delivered across South Kesteven in 
the same period (Appendix A, table 4, page 5). 

 

Infrastructure Delivery Officer role/Recruitment 

 

2.13 Since the last report to the Governance and Audit Committee, a restructure of the 

Planning Service has taken place. A new Infrastructure Delivery Officer post has 

been created and a recruitment process is currently underway to fill the role.  Once 

recruited to, a review of the processes from negotiation through to monitoring and 

collection, and spending and delivery of obligations will take place. The post holder 

will engage with the Parish and Town Councils around infrastructure need at a local 

level. 

 

2.14 An Officer Working Group was set up in 2021 following an audit into s106 

agreements.  However, on review, further work is required around the governance 

and role of that Officer Working Group. The purpose of establishing an officer group, 

is to make it easier to co-ordinate day-to-day infrastructure planning and delivery 

matters and to link in with wider corporate aspirations, including the delivery of the 

Council’s Corporate Plan. 

 

2.15  The Council can charge fees for the work undertaken to monitor s106 agreements.  

Once the Infrastructure Delivery Officer post has been recruited to, work will be 

carried out to create a charging scheme. This will need to be on a cost recovery 

basis. New Fees and Charges will need to be agreed in the usual way and this 

Committee will be involved in establishment of a new fee setting structure.   

 

 

Policy Update 

 

2.16 The Council’s Local Plan is currently undergoing a review. It is expected the draft 

Plan will be submitted for examination in March 2024 and anticipated to be adopted 

the following year.    

 

2.17 The Council’s current Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) will be updated 

once the next local plan has been adopted, although work on this will likely begin 

once the plan has been submitted for examination.   

93



 

2.18 In the meantime up-to-date evidence and information can be used to justify planning 

obligations and this will be carried out on a case-by-case basis. For example, as 

part of the local plan review, work has been commissioned to review the District’s 

open space and leisure provision.  This will inform and update the requirements for 

new developments that are currently identified in the adopted local plan.   

 

2.19 Whilst it will be beneficial to update the SPD, the age of the document does not 

prevent the Council from securing infrastructure to meet the needs of any proposed 

developments.   

 

2.20  A new Infrastructure Levy will be introduced as part of the Levelling Up and 

Regeneration Bill which would largely replace the existing Community Infrastructure 

Levy (CIL) and s106 agreements.  Whilst CIL was discretionary, local authorities 

will be required to charge the new levy and we will be required to prepare 

infrastructure delivery strategies to outline how the Council will implement the levy 

income.  The government should be consulting on further details in relation to the 

proposed infrastructure levy. 

     

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 An updated position on staffing, recruitment and the relevant planning policy is 

contained within the body of the report for information and review.  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 The Council is required to publish the Infrastructure Funding Statement in 

accordance with the legislation. Therefore, the do-nothing option was discounted.  

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 As confirmed at paragraph 2.15, the Council can charge fees (on a cost recovery 

basis) for the work undertaken to monitor s106 agreements. Once the Infrastructure 

Delivery Officer is in post, new Fees and Charges will need to be agreed. To provide 

elected Members with the opportunity to suggest enhancements to the extent and 

clarity of the information produced, it is recommended a report on establishing a 

new fee setting structure is presented shortly thereafter. 

 

6. Background Papers 
 

6.1 South Kesteven District Council Infrastructure Funding Statement, published 

December 2022 and available online at:  

www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=29059&p=0 

 

6.2 Section 106 Monitoring Update Report – Report to Governance and Audit 

Committee, published on 20 October 2021, available online at:  

94

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=29059&p=0


https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s31218/Section%20106%20

Monitoring%20Update%20Report.pdf 

 

6.3 Local Plan for South Kesteven Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning 

Obligations, published June 201, available online at:  

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=13870#:~:text=Keep%20

South%20Kesteven%20clean%2C%20green,Support%20good%20housing%20fo

r%20all 

 

7.  Appendices 

 
7.1 Appendix A: South Kesteven District Council Infrastructure Funding Statement 

(December 2022) 

 

 

95

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s31218/Section%20106%20Monitoring%20Update%20Report.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s31218/Section%20106%20Monitoring%20Update%20Report.pdf
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=13870#:~:text=Keep%20South%20Kesteven%20clean%2C%20green,Support%20good%20housing%20for%20all
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=13870#:~:text=Keep%20South%20Kesteven%20clean%2C%20green,Support%20good%20housing%20for%20all
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=13870#:~:text=Keep%20South%20Kesteven%20clean%2C%20green,Support%20good%20housing%20for%20all


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

South Kesteven District Council  

 

Infrastructure Funding Statement  

 

2021/2022 

 

 

 

Published: December 2022 

 

 

 

 

97



 

i 
 

Table of Contents 

Tables ......................................................................................................................... ii 

1. Introduction .......................................................................................................... 1 

2. Developer Contributions ...................................................................................... 2 

Headline Figures ..................................................................................................... 2 

Section 278 Highway Agreements .......................................................................... 5 

Community Infrastructure Levy ............................................................................... 5 

Section 106 Planning Obligations ........................................................................... 5 

Section 106 Infrastructure Expenditure in 2021/2022 ........................................... 12 

Other Expenditure of Section 106 Contributions in 2021/2022 .......................... 12 

Non-monetary contributions provided under planning obligations which were 

delivered during 2021/2022................................................................................... 13 

Affordable Housing Delivery .............................................................................. 13 

Section 106 receipts retained (allocated and unallocated) .................................... 14 

Total Allocations by Location ............................................................................. 18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

98



 

ii 
 

Tables 

Table 1: Monetary Contributions ................................................................................ 2 

Table 2: Non-Monetary Contributions......................................................................... 3 

Table 3: Other non-monetary contributions to be provided through Section 106 

planning obligations which were agreed in 2021/2022 ............................................... 3 

Table 4: Section 106 Signed in 2021/2022 ................................................................. 5 

Table 5: Total amount of money under any planning obligation which was received 

during 2021/2022 ..................................................................................................... 10 

Table 6: Total money received through planning obligations (whenever agreed) 

retained in 2021/2022 as "commuted sums" for longer term maintenance .............. 11 

Table 7: Infrastructure Expenditure .......................................................................... 12 

Table 8: Affordable Housing Delivery ....................................................................... 13 

Table 9: Total amount of money under any planning obligation which was received 

which has not been allocated ................................................................................... 14 

Table 10: Allocated Planning Obligation Receipts by Infrastructure Type ................ 15 

Table 11: The total amount of money (received under any planning obligation) which 

was allocated but not spent during the reported year for funding infrastructure ....... 16 

Table 12: Bourne ...................................................................................................... 18 

Table 13: The Deepings ........................................................................................... 18 

Table 14: Grantham ................................................................................................. 19 

Table 15: Stamford ................................................................................................... 19 

Table 16: Billingborough ........................................................................................... 20 

Table 17: Long Bennington ...................................................................................... 20 

 

99



 

1 
 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No.2) Regulations 

2019 which came into force on 1 September 2019 require that all local planning 

authorities publish an Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS) annually, no later 

than 31 December. This is the third IFS produced by South Kesteven District 

Council (SKDC). 

 

1.2 This report covers the financial year 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022. 

 

1.3 The IFS provides information on the monetary (and non-monetary) contributions 

sought and received from developers for the provision of infrastructure to support 

development in South Kesteven. The total held is: £2,879,684.96 

 

1.4 Monies agreed in Section 106 Agreements (S106) that were signed in 2021/2022 

for the future but which are not yet due to be received total: £1,865,447.00 

 

1.5 Statistics are also provided in relation to the type of infrastructure targeted, 

geographical allocations and the provision of Affordable Housing. 

 

1.6 SKDC seeks developer contributions through S106 Agreements (also known as 

“planning obligations”). 

 

1.7 Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 enables a Local Planning 

Authority (LPA) to enter into a negotiated agreement, a planning obligation, to 

mitigate the impact of a specific development and to make it acceptable in planning 

terms. 

 

1.8 A planning obligation might, for example, require the provision or contribution to a 

new or improved road, school, health facility or local green infrastructure. In some 

instances, obligations may require payments to be made to parish councils or other 

stakeholders.  

 

1.9 LPAs can also seek planning obligations to secure a proportion of affordable 

housing from residential developments.  

 

1.10 The intention of an IFS is that it gives policy makers and communities insight into 

how developer contributions can support our local area. The publication also 

illustrates how Section 106 obligations are used towards the objectives of the 

South Kesteven Local Plan and Corporate Plan.  

 

 

 

100



 

2 
 

2. Developer Contributions 
 

2.1 Planning obligations under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990 (as amended) are legal agreements which make a proposed development 

acceptable in planning terms, that would not otherwise be acceptable. The 

obligations are focused towards site specific mitigation of the impact of 

development. 

 

2.2 Obligations can only be sought where they are: 

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, 
(b) directly related to the development; and 
(c) fairly and reasonable related in scale and kind to the development.  

They can either be provided on-site, for example through the provision of 
affordable housing, or off-site in the form of financial payments, which are to 
be spent on specified projects/initiatives. 

2.3 SKDC’s requirements for Section 106 planning obligations are set out in the 

Council’s adopted Local Plan with additional guidance available in the Planning 

Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (June 2012)1. 

 

Headline Figures 
 

Table 1: Monetary Contributions 

 
Monetary Contributions 

 

Total Money to be provided through planning 
obligations agreed in 2021/2022 
 

 
£1,865,447.00 

Total money received through planning obligations 
in 2021/2022 

 
£670,838.94 

Total money received through planning obligations 
(whenever agreed) spent in 2021/2022 
 

 
£927,463.09 

Total money received through planning obligations 
(whenever agreed) retained in 2021/2022 
(excluding “commuted sums” for longer term 
maintenance) 
 

 
£2,702,941.95 

Total money received through planning obligations 
(whenever agreed) retained in 2021/2022 as 
“commuted sums” for longer term maintenance 

 
£176,743.01 

 

 
1 Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document: June 2012 (southkesteven.gov.uk) 

101

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=13870&p=0


 

3 
 

Table 2: Non-Monetary Contributions 

 
Non-Monetary Contributions 

 

Total Number of affordable housing 
units to be provided through planning 
obligations agreed in 2021/2022 
 

413 
(96 of which are from 100% affordable 
schemes). 

Total Number of affordable housing 
units which were provided through 
planning obligations (whenever agreed) 
in 2021/2022 
 

 
 

116 

Total number of school places for 
pupils to be provided through 
planning obligations agreed in 
2021/2022 
 

£1,015,208.00 to be provided through 
planning obligations agreed in 2021/2022. 
Number of school places is determined by 
the County Council. 

 

 

Table 3: Other non-monetary contributions to be provided through Section 106 planning obligations 
which were agreed in 2021/2022 

 
Non-Monetary Contributions 

 

 
Planning 

Reference 
 

 
Non-Monetary 
Contribution 

 
Management 

 
S21/0655 - Land 
West of Main 
Road, Long 
Bennington 
 

274 sqm on site public 
open space. 

 

 
 
S20/1169 - Land 
North of Wilsford 
Lane, Ancaster 
 

Open space (20 square 
metre (m2) per person) 
and Play areas (3 m2 per 
person) on site. 

The open space will be transferred 
to a Management Company. 

 
S19/2235 - Land 
adjacent Fire 
Station off 
Bourne Road, 
Corby Glen 
 

Open Space and Play 
Parks on site provision 
including provision of a 
LEAP.   

The open space will be transferred 
to a Management Company.  

102



 

4 
 

 
Non-Monetary Contributions 

 

 
Planning 

Reference 
 

 
Non-Monetary 
Contribution 

 
Management 

 
 
S21/0938 - Land 
at Uffington 
Road, Stamford 

No less than 0.66ha of 
on-site open space. 

The open space will be transferred 
to a Management Company. The 
S106 Agreement includes 
arrangements for the open space 
to be transferred to a management 
company, and an annual service 
charge included on the dwellings 
to cover the costs of maintenance.  
 

 
S21/1841 - Land 
on South of 
Bourne Road and 
North of 
Swinstead Road, 
Corby Glen 
 

Open Space and Play 
equipment provision via 
secured plans on site.  

The open space will be transferred 
to a Management Company. A 
service charge will be placed on 
the dwellings as an annual charge 
to cover the costs of the 
maintenance contracts.  
 

 
 
 
S19/1475 - Land 
off Cherryholt 
Road, Stamford 

No less than 1.400 m2 

open space and 200 m2 

as playspace on site.  
The S106 agreement 
includes a requirement 
for the developer to 
submit an on site public 
open space scheme.  
The S106 intends for the 
open space to be 
transferred to a 
management company. 

The Owners are obliged to 
maintain and manage, or procure 
the maintenance and management 
in perpetuity of, the open space 
and play space. The Section 106 
intends for the open space to be 
transfer to a management 
company. 

 
S18/2379 - Land 
West of A1 and 
North of Bourne 
Road, 
Colsterworth 
 

20 m2 per person open 
space and 3 m2 per 
person play area to be 
provided on site.  

Management plan confirming 
arrangements for future 
maintenance including ownership 
of the open space is to be agreed 
as per the terms of the legal 
agreement.  

 
 
S20/2056 - Land 
North of Barnack 
Road, Stamford 
 

Green Infrastructure, 
bridleway and right of 
way improvements, open 
space.  

The open space will be transferred 
to a Management Company.  
 

 

 

103



 

5 
 

Section 278 Highway Agreements 
 

2.4 Agreements used to fund infrastructure can also be made under Section 278 of 

the Highways Act 1980, which allow developers to make permanent alterations or 

improvements to a public highway as part of a planning approval. These 

agreements are agreed by Lincolnshire County Council and therefore not included 

in this IFS. 
 

Community Infrastructure Levy 
 

2.5 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a levy that Local Authorities can set 

on new developments to raise funds for infrastructure, facilities and services. 

 
2.6 Currently, SKDC has not adopted this funding mechanism and uses Section 106 

agreements and obligations to mitigate the impacts of development. 

 

Section 106 Planning Obligations 
 

2.7 Total amount of money and non-financial contributions to be provided under any 

planning obligations which were entered into during 2021/2022. Please see 

Table 3 for more information on non-monetary contributions.  
 

Table 4: Section 106 Signed in 2021/2022 

 
Planning 

Reference 
 

 
Purpose of 

funding 

 
Monetary 

contribution 

 
Non-

monetary 
contribution 

 

 
Comments 

 
 
 

S20/1169 
Land North 
of Wilsford 

Lane, 
Ancaster 

Affordable 
Housing 

 29 dwellings 30% on the 
development 

Education 
 

£343,983.00   

Healthcare 
 

£63,360.00   

Highway 
 

£5,000.00   

Open Space and 
Play Parks 

 On site (to be 
managed by 
a 
management 
company) 

Open space – 
20sqm per 
person 
Play areas – 
3sqm per 
person 
 

104



 

6 
 

 
Planning 

Reference 
 

 
Purpose of 

funding 

 
Monetary 

contribution 

 
Non-

monetary 
contribution 

 

 
Comments 

 
 
 
 

S19/2235 
Land 

adjacent 
Fire Station 
off Bourne 

Road, Corby 
Glen 

Affordable 
Housing 

 20 dwellings 30% on the 
development 

Community/Village 
Hall 

£40,180.00   

Education 
 

£223,761.00   

Healthcare 
 

£43,560.00   

Highway 
 

£2,800.00   

Open Space and 
Play Parks 

 On Site (to be 
managed by 
a 
management 
company) 

In accordance 
with approved 
details on Plan 
L---/POS/01 
and provision of 
LEAP 
 

 
 
 
 
 

S21/0938 
Land at 

Uffington 
Road, 

Stamford 
 

Community Hall 
Improvement 

£109,069.00   

Affordable 
Housing 

 127 dwellings 30% on site – 
albeit proposed 
scheme would 
include 64% on 
site provision.  
 
 

Healthcare 
 

£123,000.00   

Public Open 
Space 
 

 On site (to be 
managed by 
a 
management 
company) 

No less than 
0.66ha. 
 

 
S20/1723  
Land at 

Stephens 
Way, 

Deeping St 
James 

 
 
 
 

Affordable 
Housing 

 6 units In the form of 
two bedroomed 
bungalows 
(100% 
affordable 
scheme) 

105



 

7 
 

 
Planning 

Reference 
 

 
Purpose of 

funding 

 
Monetary 

contribution 

 
Non-

monetary 
contribution 

 

 
Comments 

 
 
 
 

S19/1475 
Land off 

Cherryholt 
Road, 

Stamford 

Health £20,460.00 
 

  

Public Open 
Space and 
Playspace 

 On site (to be 
managed by 
a 
management 
company) 

No less than 
1.400 m2 open 
space and 200 
m2 as playspace 
 

Affordable 
Housing 

 31 units 100% 
affordable 
Housing 
scheme 
 
 

 
 

S20/0908 
Land off 
Kettering 

Road, 
Stamford 

 
 
 

Affordable 
Housing 

£258,572.00  Towards off-site 
extra care 
affordable 
housing in 
Stamford 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

S18/2379 
Land West 
of A1 and 
North of 
Bourne 
Road, 

Colsterworth 
 
 
 
 

Affordable 
Housing 

 24 dwellings 35% on site. 

Education 
 

£347,955.00   

Fire Hydrant 
 

£1,806.00   

Healthcare 
 

£46,200.00   

Open Space  On site 
(Management 
details to be 
confirmed) 

20 m2 per 
person open 
space and 3 m2 

per person play 
area.  

 
S21/0415  

Doddington 
Lane, 

Claypole 
 
 

 

Affordable 
Housing 

 16 dwellings 100% 
affordable 
scheme 

106



 

8 
 

 
Planning 

Reference 
 

 
Purpose of 

funding 

 
Monetary 

contribution 

 
Non-

monetary 
contribution 

 

 
Comments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S20/2056 
Land North 
of Barnack 

Road, 
Stamford 

Affordable 
Housing 

 57 dwellings No less than 
30%  
 

C2 Healthcare Details to be 
agreed 
through a 
reserved 
matters 
application 

  

C3 Healthcare Details to be 
agreed 
through a 
reserved 
matters 
application 

  

Education 
 
 

£99,509.00  Indicative figure 
 

Green 
Infrastructure 
Strategy 

  Maximise 
alternative 
greenspace 
measures 
 

Healthcare 
services 

 May include 
digital 
consultation 
suite, clinical 
administration 
room, 
expansion of 
existing/ 
support 
primary care 

Within 2 miles of 
town Centre of 
Stamford. 

Kissing Gates 
Contribution 
 

£2,832.00   

Monitoring 
 

£10,000.00   

Bridleway 
 

  Improvements 

Network Rail 
Contribution 
 

£80,000.00   

107



 

9 
 

 
Planning 

Reference 
 

 
Purpose of 

funding 

 
Monetary 

contribution 

 
Non-

monetary 
contribution 

 

 
Comments 

Open Space  On site (to be 
managed by 
a 
management 
company) 

As part of the 
development in 
accordance with 
RM approval 
 

Right of Way 
improvements 

  Carry out or 
procure from 
the County 
Council.  
 

SAC management 
contribution 

£29,400.00   

Travel Plan 
Monitoring 

£8,000.00   

TRO £6,000.00   

Village Centre  Village centre 
building to be 
provided as 
part of the 
retirement 
development  

Village centre 
building to 
comprise 
communal 
facilities and 
wellbeing 
facilities 
including 
swimming pool, 
gym and fitness 
studio 
 

Total  
 

 £1,865,447.00   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

108



 

10 
 

 

2.8 The total amount of money under any planning obligation which was received 

during 2021/2022.  

Table 5: Total amount of money under any planning obligation which was received during 2021/2022 

 
Planning 

Reference 
 

 
Purpose of 

Funding 

 
Monetary 

Contribution 

 
Comments 

 
S16/1451 Land off 
Main Road Long 

Bennington 

Affordable 
Housing 
 
 

£168,000.00 Provision of 5 Affordable 
Housing units 

 
 
 

S18/0543 
Gravitas, Wherry’s 

Lane, Bourne 
 

Affordable 
Housing 
 

£400,000.00 Provision of 7 Affordable 
Housing units within the 
development 

Health 
 

£11,773.70 Towards improvements 
to the Hereward Medical 
Centre in Bourne 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
S12/0864 Taylor 

Wimpey East 

Green Area 
Maintenance 

£30,307.00  

Open Space and 
Leisure 
 

£13,974.51 Land totalling not less 
than 2.62 hectares for 
recreation and amenity 
space purposes 

Education 
 

£37,062.83 Educational facilities at 
Malcom Sargent Primary 
School, or, if not, St 
Gilbert’s Primary School, 
or if not, elsewhere in 
Stamford.  

Health 
 

£9,720.90 Providing, extending 
improving or altering 
health facilities in 
Stamford, the need for 
which directly arises 
from the development.  

Total 
 

 £670,838.94  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

109



 

11 
 

 

2.9 The total monies received under planning obligations during any which were 

retained at the end of the reported year and have been allocated for the purpose 

of longer-term maintenance (“commuted sums”).  
 

 

Table 6: Total money received through planning obligations (whenever agreed) retained in 2021/2022 
as "commuted sums" for longer term maintenance 

 
Planning Reference 

 

 
Monetary 

Contributions 

 
Purpose of Funding 

S05/1288 Land East of 
Churchfield Close, Deeping St 
James 
 

£9,209.72 Green Area Maintenance 

S02/1169 Land off Springfield 
Road, Springfield Business 
Park, Grantham 

£3,681.33 Green Area Maintenance 

S08/1231 Poplar Farm, 
Grantham 
 

£133,544.96 Green Area Maintenance 

S12/0864 Taylor Wimpey East 
 

£30,307.00 Green Area Maintenance 

Total 
 

£176,743.01  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

110



 

12 
 

 

Section 106 Infrastructure Expenditure in 2021/2022  

 

2.10 The total amount of money received through planning obligations (whenever 

agreed) which was spent during 2021/22 is £927,463.09. 

Table 7: Infrastructure Expenditure 

 
Planning Reference 

 
Purpose of Funding 

 

 
Spent 

S14/0082 Barnack Road, 
Stamford 
 
 

Affordable Housing £444,000.00 

S18/0543 Gravitas 
 
 

Affordable Housing £400,000.00 

S04/1463 GL Hearn - Tesco 
Market Deeping 
 

Digital Infrastructure £2,627.25 

S05/0220 Land at Springfield 
Road, Grantham 

Digital Infrastructure £6,572.49 

S02/1169 Tissington Road, 
Grantham 
 
 

Green Area 
Maintenance 

£8,999.95 

S17/1728 Towngate Inn, 3 
Towngate East, Market Deeping 
 

Open Spaces and 
Leisure 

£14,354.36 

S11/1374 Wherrys Yard, Bourne 
 
 

Open Spaces and 
Leisure 

£5,569.62 

S11/1374 Wherrys Yard, Bourne 
 

Health £45,339.42 
 

Total  
 

 £927,463.09 

 

Other Expenditure of Section 106 Contributions in 2021/2022 

 

2.11 No money received through planning obligations was spent in 2021/2022 on 

repaying money borrowed. 

 

2.12 No money received through planning obligations was spent in 2021/2022 in 

respect of monitoring (including the preparation of this Infrastructure Funding 

Statement) in relation to the delivery of planning obligations. 

111



 

13 
 

 

Non-monetary contributions provided under planning obligations which were 

delivered during 2021/2022 
 

Affordable Housing Delivery 
 

2.13 Table 8 relates to the completions of affordable dwellings across the district. In 

summary, 116 affordable dwellings were delivered in SKDC during the financial 

year 2021/2022. 

Table 8: Affordable Housing Delivery 

 

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 

 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

R
e
n

t 

 

In
te

rm
e

d
ia

te
 

R
e
n

t 

 

S
h

a
re

d
 

O
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 

S
o

c
ia

l 
R

e
n

t 

 

R
e

n
t 

T
o

 B
u

y
 

 

T
o

ta
l 

 
Grantham 
 

 
17 

 
8 

 
9 

 
3 
 

 
- 

 
37 

 
Stamford 
 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
2 
 

 
- 

 
2 

 
Bourne 
 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
7 
 

 
- 

 
7 

 
The Deepings  
 

 
9 

 
- 

 
15 

 
- 

 
- 

 
24 

 
Larger Villages 
 

 
12 

 
- 

 
24 

 
- 

 
10 

 
46 

 
Total 

 

 
38 

 
8 

 
48 

 
12 

 
10 

 
116 

 

 

2.14 Definitions of the categories used in Table 8 above are set out below. 

 

Affordable Housing - includes social rented, affordable rented and intermediate 

housing, provided to specified eligible households whose needs are not met by the 

market. It can be a new-build property or a private sector property that has been 

purchased for use as an affordable home. 

112



 

14 
 

Affordable Rent – is a rent charged up to 80% of the market levels within the local 

area, offered by Registered Housing Providers to households whose needs are 

not met by the market. 

Intermediate Rent – as Affordable Rent above but offered by private landlords, 

allowing households without the money for a deposit to purchase a property and 

the opportunity to obtain a home whilst still saving for a deposit. 

Shared Ownership – Allows buyers to purchase a share of a property (25% to 

75%) and pay rent on the remaining share. It provides intermediate tenancy for 

households which would not otherwise be able to afford home ownership. The 

supply of new shared ownership properties has increased in recent years, making 

up an increasing proportion of new homes for affordable home ownership.  

Social Rent – houses are owned by Local Authorities and Registered Providers 

for which guideline target rents are determined through the national rent regime 

Rent to Buy – a Government scheme designed to ease the transition from renting 

to buying a home by providing subsidised rent. 

 

Section 106 receipts retained (allocated and unallocated) 
 

2.15 The total amount of money, received through planning obligations prior to 

2021/2022 which had not been allocated to a specific infrastructure project or item 

by the end of 2021/2022: £290,627.51 

Table 9: Total amount of money under any planning obligation which was received which has not 
been allocated 

 
Planning Reference 
 

 
Monetary 

contribution 
 

 
Purpose of Funding 

S12/0438 2A 
Radcliffe Road, 
Stamford  

£290,627.51 Affordable Housing provision - Not 
currently allocated to a specific 
scheme or area, can be pooled with 
other affordable commuted sums 
(pooling restrictions have now been 
removed).  Planning obligations must 
be necessary to make the 
development acceptable in planning 
terms. As such, infrastructure should 
be sited in the vicinity of the 
development. 

Total 
 

£290,627.51  

 

113



 

15 
 

2.16 By the end of 2021/2022, the total amount of money received under any planning 

obligation in any year, which has been allocated to an infrastructure project or type 

for spending, but which had not been spent (including “commuted sums”): 

£2,589,057.45 

 

 

Table 10: Allocated Planning Obligation Receipts by Infrastructure Type 

 
Infrastructure Type 

 

 
Planning Obligation receipts allocated 

Affordable Housing 
 

£799,327.91 

Digital Infrastructure 
 

£25,118.79 

CCTV & Public Art 
 

£7,528.71 

Community Facilities 
 

£83,121.56 

Green Area Maintenance 
 

£176,743.01 

Open Spaces & Leisure 
 

£358,717.01 

Monitoring 
 

£12,210.80 

Education 
 

£694,925.84 

Health 
 

£308,199.66 

Transport & Travel 
 

£123,164.16 

Total 
 

£2,589,057.45 

 

 

 

2.17 Table 11 below sets out the details of the items of infrastructure on which the 

money has been allocated, and the amount allocated to each of them. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

114



 

16 
 

Table 11: The total amount of money (received under any planning obligation) which was allocated 
but not spent during the reported year for funding infrastructure 

 
Site Reference 

 

 
Monetary 

Contribution 
 

 
Purpose of 

funding/contribution 

S15/0030 Marshall's Yard, 
Stamford 

£291,200.00 
 

Affordable Housing 

S11/0967 McCarthy Stone, 
Grantham 
 

£29,090.65 Affordable Housing 

S10/2106 Land to the rear 45-49 
Harrowby Lane 
 

£177,000.00 Affordable Housing 

S17/1728 Towngate Inn, 3 
Towngate east, Market Deeping 
 

£134,037.26 Affordable Housing 

S16/1451 Land off Main Road 
Long Bennington 

£168,000.00 Affordable Housing 

S05/0220 Land at Springfield Rd, 
Impress Metal Packaging Ltd – 
Grantham 
 

£25,118.79 Digital Infrastructure 

S08/1231 Poplar Farm 
 

£7,528.71 CCTV or Public Art 

S00/0843 Land North of 
Springfield Road 
 

£45,000.00 Community Facilities 

S08/1231 Poplar Farm 
 

£38,121.56 Community Facilities 

S05/1288 Land East Churchfield 
Close, Deeping St James 

£9,209.72 Green Area Maintenance 

S02/1169 Persimmon Homes - 
Springfield Road, Grantham 

£3,681.33 Green Area Maintenance 

S08/1231 Poplar Farm 
 

£133,544.96 Green Area Maintenance 

S12/0864 Taylor Wimpey East 
 

£30,307.00 Green Area Maintenance 

S12/0864 Stamford West 
 
 

£184,240.00 Open Spaces and 
Leisure 

S99/1156 Langford Gardens 
 

£4,112.60 Open Spaces and 
Leisure 

S09/2245 Caunt Road, Grantham 
 

£426.50 Open Spaces and 
Leisure 

S14/3208 High St Billingborough 
 

£5,831.00 Open Spaces and 
Leisure 

S13/2586 Land at Belvoir Close, 
Stamford 

£9,586.40 Open Spaces and 
Leisure 

115



 

17 
 

 
Site Reference 

 

 
Monetary 

Contribution 
 

 
Purpose of 

funding/contribution 

S14/1684 Southfield Business 
Park, Falcon Way Bourne 
 

£17,662.14 Open Spaces and 
Leisure 

S12/0864 Empingham Road, 
Stamford 
 

£124,244.24 Open Spaces and 
Leisure 

S12/0438 2A Radcliffe Road, 
Stamford 

£12,614.13 Open Spaces and 
Leisure 

S08/1231 Poplar Farm 
 

£2,210.80 Monitoring 

S12/0864 Stamford West 
 

£10,000.00 Monitoring 

S08/1231 Poplar Farm 
 

£341,480.73 Education 

S12/0864 Empingham Road, 
Stamford 
 

£293,470.13 Education 

S17/1262 Rioja Developments 
 

£22,912.15 Education 

S12/0864 Taylor Wimpey East 
 

£37,062.83 Education 

S08/1231 Poplar Farm 
 

£60,827.19 Health 

S12/0864 Stamford West 
 

£133,000.00 Health 

S17/1728 Towngate Inn, 3 
Towngate east, Market Deeping 
 

£13,275.87 Health 

S12/0864 Empingham Road, 
Stamford 
 

£89,322.90 Health 

S18/0543 Wherry's Lane Bourne 
 

£11,773.70 Health 

S17/1728 Towngate Inn, 3 
Towngate east, Market Deeping 

£2,577.64 Transport and Travel 

S08/1231 Poplar Farm 
 

£13,802.63 Transport and Travel 

S12/0864 Stamford West 
 

£106,783.89 Transport and Travel 

Total 
 

£2,589,057.45  

 

 

 

116



 

18 
 

Total Allocations by Location 

 

2.18 Tables 12-17 below show the monies the Councils holds for infrastructure 

provision that needs to be provided in specific locations within the District, this has 

been split into the identified allocations. It should be noted that, despite the 

categories being broad descriptions, the individual contributions are committed to 

specific locations and cannot be used for any other purpose unless a legal 

variation is agreed between all parties.  

 

2.19 In some instances, such as affordable housing, the agreement requests 

expenditure within a certain location. However, if this is unachievable, the 

agreement will prescribe where delivery of infrastructure and use of the obligations 

is to be expected.  

 

Table 12: Bourne 

 
Bourne 

 

Infrastructure type Amount Held 

 
Open Space and Leisure 

 
£17,662.14 

 
Health  

 
£11,773.70 

Total £29,435.84 

 

Table 13: The Deepings 

 
The Deepings 

 

Infrastructure type Amount Held 

 
Affordable Housing 

£134,037.26 
 

Green Area Maintenance £9,209.72 

 
Health 

£13,275.87 
 

 
Transport 

£2,577.64 
 

Total £159,100.49 
 

 

 

 

 

117



 

19 
 

Table 14: Grantham 

 
Grantham 

 

Infrastructure type Amount Held 

 
Affordable Housing 

£206,090.65 

 
CCTV & Public Art 

£7,528.71 

 
Community Facilities 

£83,121.56 

 
Digital Infrastructure 

£25,118.79 

 
Education 

£364,392.88 

 
Green Area Maintenance 

£137,226.29 

 
Health 

£60,827.19 

 
Monitoring Fees 

£2,210.80 

 
Open Space and Leisure 

£4,539.10 

 
Transport 

£13,802.63 

Total £904,858.60 

 

Table 15: Stamford 

 
Stamford 

 

Infrastructure type Amount Held 

 
Affordable Housing 

 
£291,200.00 

 
Education 

 
£330,532.96 

 
Health 

 
£222,322.90 

 
Monitoring Fees 

 
£10,000.00 

 
Open Space and Leisure 

 
£330,684.68 

 
Green Area Maintenance 

 
£30,307.00 

 
Transport 

 
£106,783.89 

Total £1,321,831.52 

118



 

20 
 

 

Table 16: Billingborough 

 
Billingborough 

 

Infrastructure type Amount Held 

 
Open Space and Leisure 

 
£5,831.00 

Total £5,831.00 

 

Table 17: Long Bennington 

 
Long Bennington 

 

Infrastructure type Amount Held 

 
Affordable Housing 

£168,000.00 
 

Total £168,000.00 

 

 

 

119



 

 
 

Alternative formats and languages 
 

To ensure all residents of South Kesteven have access to our information material, 

our information is available in a range of different languages and formats, including 

large print, Braille, audio tape and computer disc. 

To request a document in a specific language or format, you can ring us or email us 

on: 01476 40 60 80 -  pr@southkesteven.gov.uk                

This information can be made available in large print, Braille, on audio tape or 

computer disc. If you, or someone you know, might benefit from this service, 

please contact us. 

 

Polski / Polish 

Informacja ta może być dostępna w języku polskim. Jeżeli Pańswo albo ktoś kogo 

Państwo znają, może z tej usługi skorzystać, proszę nas kontaktować.  

 

繁体中文 / Cantonese 

本資料有繁体中文版，若你本人或你認識的甚麼人會受益於此版本，敬請聯絡我們。 

 

Magyar / Hungarian 

Ezeket az információkat magyar nyelven is tudjuk biztosítani. Ha Ön, vagy valaki, 

akit Ön ismer igényt tart erre a szolgáltatásra, kérem, keressen fel minket. 

 

Latviski / Latvian 

Šo informāciju var iegūt arī latviešu valodā. Ja Jums vai kādai no Jūsu paziņai šādi 

pakalpojumi nāktu par labu, lūdzu kontaktējiet mūs.  

 

Lietuviškai / Lithuanian 

Šią informaciją galite gauti lietuvių kalba. Prašome kreiptis į mus, jei jums arba jūsų 

pažįstamiems ši paslauga galėtų būti naudinga. 

 

 

 

120



 

 
 

Português / Portuguese 

Esta informação pode ser disponibilizada em português. Se você, ou alguém que 

conhecer, beneficiar com este serviço, por favor contacte-nos. 

 

русский / Russian 

Эта информация может быть доступна крупным шрифтом, шрифтом Брайля, 

на аудиокассете или на компьютерном диске. Если вы или кто-то из ваших 

знакомых может воспользоваться этой услугой, свяжитесь с нами. 

 

Slovenský / Slovak 

Tieto informácie je možné sprístupniť veľkou tlačou, Braillovým písmom, zvukovou 

páskou alebo počítačovým diskom. Ak z tejto služby môžete mať úžitok vy alebo 

niekto, koho poznáte, kontaktujte nás 

 

Pilipino / Tagalog 

Ang impormasyong ito ay maaaring magamit sa malaking print, Braille, sa audio tape 

o computer disc. Kung ikaw, o isang taong kilala mo, ay maaaring makinabang mula 

sa serbisyong ito, mangyaring makipag-ugnay sa amin 

 

Français / French 

Ces informations peuvent être mises à disposition en gros caractères, en braille, sur 

bande audio ou sur un disque d'ordinateur. Si vous, ou quelqu'un que vous 

connaissez, pourriez bénéficier de ce service, veuillez nous contacter. 

 

121



This page is intentionally left blank



Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme 2022-23 

 
 

Committee Membership: 9 

Chairman: Councillor Helen Crawford 

Vice Chairman: Councillor Ben Green 

REPORT TITLE ISSUE PURPOSE ORIGINATED 
CORPORATE 

PRIORITY 

21 February 2023 

Grantham 
Future High 
Streets Fund 

Lead Officer: Alex Ward 
(Programme Manager) 

An update on the progress 
of the Future High Streets 
Fund projects in Grantham.  

Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

Growth and our 
Economy 

Quarter 3 
Budget 
Monitoring  

Lead Officer: Richard Wyles 
(Chief Finance Officer) 

Update to Committee Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

High Performing 
Council 

 
Housing Stock 
Condition 
Update 

Lead Officer: Craig Spence 
(Acting Director of Housing) 

Update to Committee Agreed at September 
Committee meeting 

High Performing 
Council 

Section 106 
Monitoring 
Report 

Lead Officer: Emma Whittaker 
Assistant Director for Planning) 

To update the Committee on 
the Council’s Section 106 
activity. 

Agreed at agenda setting 
meeting 

Growth and our 
Economy 

ICT Cyber-
security Action 
Plan Verbal 
Update 

Lead Officer: Alison Hall-Wright 
(Assistant Director of Finance) 

Verbal update on the 
progress of action plan as 
requested by Committee 

Agreed at Committee 
meeting on 22 November 
2022 

High Performing 
Council 

Disabilities 
Facilities Grant 
Report 

Lead Officer: Anne-Marie 

Coulthard (Assistant Director of 

Operations and Public 

Protection) 

Update to Committee Requested by Cabinet 
Member 

High Performing 
Council 

 

 

123

A
genda Item

 13



 
 

 

 
Unscheduled items 

Report title Issue Originated Corporate Priority 
 

The Committee’s Remit 
 

The remit of the Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to work alongside Cabinet 
Members to assist with the development of policy and to scrutinise decisions in respect of, but not limited to: 
 

• Budget monitoring 

• Budget setting 

• Business rate relief 

• Business transformation 

• Car parks, bus stations and town centre infrastructure  

• Charitable rate relief 

• Council-owned property, assets and maintenance (non-council house) 

• Customer access strategy 

• Data protection reporting 

• Economic development 

• Fees and charges 

• Large-scale development projects 

• Medium term financial planning and national funding proposals 

• Performance reporting 

• Review of outturn 

• Shop front designs and funding 

• Street furniture 

• Town centre developments and partnerships 
 

124


	Agenda
	4 Action notes of the meeting held on 22 November 2022
	Minutes
	52 Appendix A -Written Submission and Responses

	5 Updates from previous meeting
	8 Budget Monitoring Report - Quarter 3 (October - December 2022)
	Appendix A 22/23 General Fund Significant Variance Analysis
	Appendix B - 22/23 General Fund Reserves
	Appendix C - 22/23 HRA Revenue Summary Forecast Outturn
	Appendix D - 22/23 HRA Reserves
	Appendix E - Finance Risk Register

	9 Disabled Facilities Grant Report 2022/2023
	10 Grantham Future High Streets Fund - February 2023 Update
	Appendix A - EXEMPT Plan
	Appendix B - Draft Grantham Town Team Action Plan

	11 Housing Stock Condition Update
	Appendix 1 - Stock Condition Survey Completions 2022
	Appendix 2 HRA Capital Template 2022 - 25

	12 S106 Agreement Monitoring Update Report
	Appendix A - SKDC Infrastructure Funding Statement Dec 2022

	13 Work Programme 2022 - 2023

